
Audit and Accounts Committee  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Audit and Accounts Committee to be held 
as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 

Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Wednesday, 23 March 2022 

 
TIME:  2.30 pm 

 
VENUE: The Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 

5DA. 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 

2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting.  

 
AGENDA 

 
 GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC FOR FACE TO 

FACE MEETINGS  

 

(Pages 1 - 4) 

 2PM - MEMBERS ONLY: SELF-ASSESSMENT EXERCISE - DAVID 
SMITH AND SIMON BLECKLY  

 

 

1   Apologies for Absence  

 

 

2   The Committee is asked to consider whether it agrees to the 
inclusion of the items  listed in Parts 1 and 2 of the agenda.  

 

 

3   Declarations of Interest.  

 

 

4   To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the previous 
meeting.  

 

Minutes of the meeting held on 26th January 2022. 
 

(Pages 5 - 12) 

5   Matters Arising  

 

 

6   Report on the Effectiveness of the Internal Audit - Simon Bleckly  
 

Report of the Chief Finance Officer and the Head of Internal Audit 

 

(Pages 13 - 22) 

7   Audit and Accounts Terms of Reference - David Smith  

 

Report of the Chief Finance Officer and the Head of Internal Audit 
 

(Pages 23 - 32) 

Public Document Pack



 

8   Statement of Accounts Update - Joanne Hardman  
 

The Chief Finance Officer – verbal update 
 

 

9   External Auditors Update (Mazars):  

 

(Pages 33 - 48) 

10   Internal Audit Progress Report - David Smith  

 

Report of the Chief Finance Officer and the Head of Internal Audit 
 

(Pages 49 - 62) 

11   Internal Audit Strategy and Draft Internal Audit Plan - Simon 
Bleckly  

 

Report of the Chief Finance Officer and the Head of Internal Audit 
 

(Pages 63 - 90) 

12   The Work Programme and Membership  

 
(Pages 91 - 94) 

13   URGENT BUSINESS - PART 1  

 

 

14   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  

 

The officers consider that the following items contain exempt 
information as provided for in the Local Government Access to 

Information Act and that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 

 Members are recommended to agree the necessary 
resolutions excluding the public from the meeting during consideration 
of this item. At the time this agenda is published no representations 

have been that this part of the meeting should be open to the public. 
 

 

15   URGENT BUSINESS - PART 2  

 

 

16   Date of Next Meeting  

 

Wednesday 22nd June 2022 at 2pm (1:45pm for members). 

 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2811 

Liz Wright E-Mail: liz.wright@salford.gov.uk 



Last updated 04.01.22 

Face to face public meetings in The Salford Suite at the Civic 

Centre from 1st September 2021 
 
Face to face public meetings have been held in The Salford Suite in the Old Town 
Hall Building at the Civic Centre from Wednesday 1st September 2021.   
 

The Salford Suite is the only available room that is large enough to hold meetings 
and still comply with social distancing and Covid safe guidelines, as advised by 
Public Health.  
 

Everyone involved has worked hard to ensure that the transfer of face to face 
meetings to the Salford Suite will be held in a COVID-19 secure environment. Your 
safety is our upmost priority, whilst also supporting transparency, accountability and 
effective decision making.  
 

This briefing note outlines the arrangements in place and the guidelines that we are 
all asked to adhere to ensure everyone is kept safe and the city council’s decision 
making remains legally compliant. 
 

1. General guidelines for meetings 
 

a. It should be possible to hold most of the decision making meetings back in the 
Salford Suite but it will not be possible to hold the meetings of the Council, 
Licensing and Safety Regulatory Panel (taxis) and Planning and 
Transportation Regulatory Panel, due to the number of people required to 
attend and so they will remain at 100 Embankment for the foreseeable future.  
There may also be times, when the date and times of meetings clash, that one 
may need to move to 100 Embankment. 
 

2. Using the Salford Suite for face to face meetings  

It is very important, for everyone’s safety, that you only visit the Salford Suite when 

attending meetings.   

a. Where to enter the building 
You must enter the building by the main front door of the Old Town Hall building.  
You will need to be let into the building as a pass is required so an officer from 
Democratic Services should be on hand to direct you safely to The Salford Suite.   
For evening meetings, if you cannot get access via the main front door please 
walk around to the main Reception and press the out of hours buzzer to gain 
access.  

 

 

Page 1

Agenda Annex



Last updated 04.01.22 

 

b. Areas of the building that are closed to people attending meetings   

• Extensive rebuilding renovations are taking place in the Civic Centre so 
access to rooms and space is very limited.  Most of the building will remain 
closed and many contractors will be working on site. 

• Other members of the public are also using the building to access the 
Registrars offices and the ceremony rooms and arrangements are in place for 
them to do so safely, so there will be no access to the Registrars corridor 
and the ceremony room’s corridor during the day. 

 

c. Toilets  

• The toilets on the first floor on the committee room corridor must be used.  

The Registrars corridor will not be open to members, officers and members of 

the public attending meetings in The Salford Suite.   

• The accessible toilet can be used on the Registrars corridor if required and an 

officer from Democratic services will act as a marshal on the corridor so 

members can use it.  Please alert the clerk in attendance at the meeting on 

the day.  
 

3. Guidance for attending the meetings in a COVID-secure manner  
 

a. Lateral flow testing and PCR tests 

• A vital element of our COVID-secure plans is that everyone attending should 
complete a COVID-19 lateral flow home tests three days before the 
meeting and on the morning of the meeting.  You can order or collect a home 
testing kit by: 
- Ordering a box of test kits to be delivered to your home  
- Collecting a box of test kits from a local collection point  

 

• If you test positive before or on the day you were meant to attend the meeting 
under no circumstances should you attend.  If your lateral flow test is 
positive you will then need to book a complementary PCR Test and follow 
national guidance on self-isolating.  
 

• Despite all the COVID-secure measures we have put in place there remains a 
residual risk and coronavirus can make anyone seriously ill. For some of you 
the risk is higher, particularly if you are clinically extremely vulnerable or if 
they are at significant risk or you have one or more health conditions as a 
number of risk factors may interact as well as health conditions. 

  

• You may wish to take medical advice about your particular circumstances, if 
either of the above applies to you before you make a decision about attending 
face to face meetings.  
 

b. Attending the meeting on the day in The Salford Suite 

• Please arrive at least 20 minutes before the start of the meeting to allow for 
controlled access to the building and meeting space.  

• The meeting will be run in line with Government guidance, and using the 
principle of ‘hands, face, space and fresh air’. You are asked to regularly 
wash and sanitise your hands, wear a face covering unless you hold a 

Page 2

https://www.gov.uk/order-coronavirus-rapid-lateral-flow-tests
https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/coronavirus/how-to-get-tested/book-a-free-rapid-coronavirus-test/rapid-testing-sites-in-salford/


Last updated 04.01.22 

medical exemption, and please maintain a social distance (1.5m) from others 
at all times whilst attending meetings.  

• You may remove your mask when you are seated but please wear your face 
covering when moving around the room or when on the corridor. 

• Movement around the meeting spaces will be kept to an absolute minimum 
with pre-defined entrances and exits and restricted areas, as outlined above. 
 

4. Meetings continuing at 100 Embankment  
 

a. Lateral flow testing and PCR tests 

The guidance listed under 3a above also applies at 100 Embankment. 

b. Travelling to 100 Embankment 

• There are a range of travel options to 100 Embankment, and full details can 
be found at this link: https://embankmentmanchester.com/transport-options. 

• It is a 4 minute walk from Manchester Victoria train and tram stations 

• The Free Bus stops outside both Salford Central Station and 100 
Embankment 

• There is secure cycle storage and showers on site. 
 

c. Parking at 100 Embankment 

• There is onsite parking in the underground QPark (Deansgate North) 
immediately below the building. Discounts are available for parking booked in 
advance (https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgate-
north/).  Cleminson Street remains the closest Salford City Council parking.  

• Taxi drop off is available immediately to the front door of the building.  

Page 3

https://embankmentmanchester.com/transport-options
https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgate-north/
https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgate-north/


This page is intentionally left blank



Audit & Accounts Committee 26.01.22                                                                                                                                        1 
 

Audit and Accounts Committee 

In person meeting in The Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre. 

 

Date: 26th January 2022 

Meeting commenced: 2:30pm 
Meeting ended: 3:35pm 

Present:  

 Councillor Robin Garrido:  In the Chair 

 Councillors: Roger Jones, Mike Pevitt, Gina Reynolds, Alex Shama, Philip Tresadern, 

Roseanna Wain.  

Public:  None 

Observer attending online: Councillor Walsh 

Officers:  

 Cath Andrews – External Auditors (Mazars) 

 Simon Bleckly – Head of Internal Audit  

 Joanne Hardman – Chief Finance Officer  

 Debbie McCarron – Data Compliance Manager 

 Karen Murray - External Auditor (Mazars) 

 Jacquie Russell – Assistant Director Policy and Performance 

 David Smith – Internal Audit Manager 

 Liz Wright - Senior Democratic Services Officer 

1. Membership update and welcome to a new member 

 The Chair (Councillor Robin Garrido) reported that he had received a letter of resignation 

from co-opted member Vittoria Bugana and thanked her for her valuable contribution to the 

committee.  

 The Chair welcomed Councillor Roseanna Wain to her first meeting of the committee and 

wished her a long and enjoyable time on the committee.  Her appointment had been 

approved at full Council 19.01.22 and it was confirmed she would be filling the Labour Party 

vacancy on the committee. 

2. Apologies for absence 

Apologies were received from Councillor Roger Jones, Councillor John Walsh Eduardo Bucci 
and Chris Hesketh (Head of Financial Management) and Iolanda Puzio (City 
Solicitor/Monitoring Officer). 

 
3. The committee is asked to consider whether it agrees to the inclusion of the items listed 

in Parts 1 and 2 of the agenda 

 It was confirmed that all items were Part 1 items and there would be no requirement to move 

to Part 2. 

 The committee agreed to move item 6, External Audit Contract Procurement and Public 

Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), to be the first item of business.  
 

Resolved: That the items included on the agenda for this meeting and to consider item 6 as the 

first item of business on the agenda, be approved. 

4. Declarations of interest 

There were no declarations of interests. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Audit & Accounts Committee 26.01.22                                                                                                                                        2 
 

5. External Audit Contract Procurement and Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) 

The Chair introduced the report and highlighted the following: 

 The Local Authority (LA) has to appoint  a local auditor to audit its accounts LAs can decide 

to opt into the national auditor appointment scheme and have a local auditor appointed on 

their behalf, as allowed by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 as detailed in the 

report.  This report was to propose that the committee approved the proposal to opt into the 

national auditor appointment scheme for the period 2023/24 – 2027/28.  

 If the LA did not opt into the scheme it would need to make arrangements for the 

appointment on its own or jointly with other LAs. 

The Chief Finance Officer (Joanne Hardman) introduced the report and highlighted the 

following: 

a. The report was to inform members of the Committee of the process for appointing local 

authority external auditors for the five years 2023/24 to 2027/28 and obtain the view of the 
Committee on whether the council should become an opted in authority, joining the national 

auditor appointments framework managed by Public Sector Audit Appointments. 
b. Under the Local Audit & Accountability Act 2014 (“the Act”), the Authority was required to 

appoint an auditor to audit its accounts for each financial year. The Authority had the three 

following options and an overview was given of each option: 
1. To appoint its own auditor, which required it to follow the procedures set out in the Act. 
2. To act jointly with other authorities to procure an auditor following the procedures in the 

Act. 
3. To opt into the national auditor appointment scheme administered by a body designated 

by the Secretary of State as the “appointing person‟. The body currently designated for 
this role was the Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA). 

 The findings from the Redmond review had highlighted the current systemic weaknesses in 

the market for public audit services: the reforms proposed in response to the review will 
take time to come into effect, increasing the risk that the late completion of audits will 

continue for the foreseeable future. There was limited scope for the council to take action 
by itself to address this risk: there was no appetite amongst other authorities to enter into 

joint procurement arrangements, therefore the recommendation to the panel was that 
opting in again to the national auditor appointment scheme was the only viable option. 

 

The Chair invited comments and questions from the members and the following were raised. 

 A member asked what share of funding the Council would have from the £15M made 

available by the Government and it was confirmed that Salford’s share would be £54,000 
and that the audit fees would be a set fee agreed at the start of the arrangement and that 
the audit fees were set to rise. 

 A member asked if the recommendations from the Redmond Review would enable the 
market for auditors to be widened and it was confirmed that part of the changes was to be 

able to grow the market and bring in smaller firms. 

 The Chair asked if there would be any impact on additional charges charged by auditors if 

the Council had the same auditors as other LAs in Greater Manchester (GM) .  It was 
commented that the ability to challenge any extra costs (as had happened in previous 
years) should not be affected. 

 The Chair asked about the level of extra charges in previous years and it was confirmed 
that it varied each year due to the different issues raised in the audit and that the £54,000 

allocated to cover the cost of the auditors would not cover all the costs. 

 The Chair read out the recommendations from the report and the committee members 

voted unanimously to accept them. 

Page 6



Audit & Accounts Committee 26.01.22                                                                                                                                        3 
 

 
Resolved:  That the committee considered and approved the decision to opt in to the national 

auditor appointment scheme for the period 2023/24 to 2027/28. 
 

6. To approve, as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting 
 

Resolved:  That the committee approved, as a true and correct record, the minutes of the 

previous meeting held on 27th October 2021. 
 

7. Matters arising 

1. Pension Liabilities:  

 A member asked about the position with the pension liabilities and it was confirmed that 

this was still an outstanding item for the Statement of Accounts and the External Auditor 

(EA) was taking legal advice.  The LA had taken external legal advice, which had now 

been received and backed the LA’s positions and this had been sent to the EA 

yesterday for their consideration. 

 The Chair confirmed they had been kept informed of any developments with this 

throughout the period between meetings. 

8. Provisional local government finance settlement 2022/23  

The CFO introduced the report and highlighted the following: 

 This report set out the key headlines from the provisional local government finance 

settlement 2022/23.  

 The settlement was a one-year settlement only, which meant that there was still uncertainty 

after 2022/23 and there was a concern for the impact on the LA’s ability to plan for the 
longer term financially.  

 The overall approach had been to roll forward the 2021/22 settlement, with inflationary 

increases. There were some new monies available, although a significant proportion was 
expected by Government to be raised via council tax. 

 Aspects of the settlement were highlighted for members to further consider such as: 
o The fair funding review and business rate reform 
o The new homes bonus 

o Levelling up bids 
o School funding 

o Business rates multiplier 
o Public health grant 

 The Government had opened a technical consultation which had ended on 13 January 2022 

and the LA’ response had included: 
o 3.1% inflation fell short of current forecasts for inflation. 

o Negative RSG continued to benefit prosperous councils, reducing resources available to 
other councils. 

o Overall, the proposals did not do enough to address the needs of Salford’s communities 
and reverse the reductions imposed through austerity. 

o The expectation that a substantial proportion of core spending power increase was to be 

funded from the council tax payer, rather than national funding, continued to place 
pressure upon council tax payers. 

o There was still no sustainable, recurrent funding solution to address the crisis in social 
care.  

o The non-recurrent nature of much of the settlement made it difficult to plan properly for 

financial resilience beyond 2022/23. 

Page 7



Audit & Accounts Committee 26.01.22                                                                                                                                        4 
 

o  The rural services delivery grant generally benefited prosperous rural areas through 

sparsity factors, whereas density factors had been shown to be more meaningful cost 
drivers. 

The LA had called on the Government to: 

o Increase overall funding. 
o Address the social care funding crisis and bring forward proposals to mitigate the impact 

on local tax payers. 
o Make progress with the fair funding review, with proper consideration to deprivation and 

need. 

o Aim to provide local government with a rolling three year settlement to allow 
o for better management of risks to financial resilience. 

 The Government would further consult on its fair funding proposals and was committed to 
further consultation on the deprivation factors. 
 

The Chair invited comments and questions from the members and the following were raised. 

 The Lead Member for Finance and Support Services welcomed that at last week’s Council 

meeting there had been all party support for the response to Government about the 
concerns about the funding for the Council, as raised in the report. 

 A member asked about the impact of inflation and if and how the budget would be adapted 
if the rate changed during the financial year.  It was confirmed that the adjustment for 
inflation reported was set at the time of the budget being approved and the Council had to 

make a judgement on how best to mitigate this risk. 

 A member asked about the pilot business rate scheme and it was reported that there had 

been an arrangement when embarking on the polit that the Council would not be worse off 
for taking part and it had given the Council and opportunity to be able to retain any growth 
in rates.  The growth expected pre-pandemic had not materialised and so the expectations 

for growth this year had been reduced.  Collection of rates had been better than expected 
and it that had probably been because of the grants that had been made available to 

businesses. 

 A member asked about the RSG adjustments and it was reported that the Government had 

put a safety net in place to protect authorities but it only applied to a small number of LAs.  
Salford LA lost out as this did not apply due to the lower value banding in the city. 

 A member asked if the one year settlement posed a risk for the Council. It was reported that 

it made it more difficult to smooth out any financial challenges that the Council would face 
where previously multi-year settlements gave more flexibility and enabled more effective 

financial planning. 

 The Char asked if the 6.9% increase in the settlement outlined in the report referred to the 
increase in the overall funding the council had received when all pots w[of funding were 

considered. It was confirmed that the 6.9% was the national figure for the increase in core 
funding and that the figure for Salford would need to be investigated further and the CFO 

would provide this information directly to the Chair. 

 The Cahir asked if there were any other risks that the committee needed to eb aware of and 

the CFO commented that the main risk was that there was enough funding to cover the 
pressures that could materialise through the year, for example in social care and any 
unforeseen issues.  The extra Covid funding had smoothed the pressures for the last 12 

months and would not be available for the next year.  These pressures would be monitored 
via the performance statements. 

 Members highlighted the possible pressures that could be experienced in the adult social 
care market due to providers leaving the market and the pressures on the Integrated Fund 
nd the new the new Integrated Care System (ICS) and the CFO confirmed these were 

areas of concern that would be monitored. 

Page 8



Audit & Accounts Committee 26.01.22                                                                                                                                        5 
 

 The Chair requested that the performance statements be presented to the committee (in a 

user friendly format) on a regular basis for the committee’s consideration. 

 The Chair, on behalf of the committee, thanked the Finance Team for all their hard work 

compiling the report and the Council budget. 
 

Resolved:  That, the Committee: 

1. Requested that the performance statements be presented to the committee (in a user 
friendly format) on a regular basis for the committee’s consideration. 

2. Noted the report. 

 
9. Strategic Risk Register update 

The Assistant Director (AD) Policy and Performance (Jacquie Russell) introduced the report 

and highlighted the following. 

 The report provided the six monthly update on the Strategic Risk Register. 

 There were seven strategic risks on the register at the moment. 

 Service group risks were separate from the strategic register. 

 Sections 3.3 and 3.4 detailed the risk scores and highlighted the red and amber risks. 

 There was confident that all the risks were manageable and the example of the business 

disruption as a high risk was discussed along with cyber security, seen as a substantial risk. 

 Full details of the high risks and their mitigations were shown in the appendix. 

 Financial resilience had been detailed in the finance report earlier. 

  

The Chair invited questions and comments from members on the Charter and the following 

were raised. 

 A member asked how the new ICS governance was viewed in terms of risk. It was 

explained that a number of arrangements would need to be put in place for the Integrated 

Care Board (ICB) at GM level and the integrated Care partnership and all this was currently 

being worked through.  Members would be consulted on the proposals in terms of 

governance. 

 A member asked about the cyber security risk, especially in terms of home working and the 

Council relying even more on IT. It was reported that an updated multi factor authentication 

process was being implemented across the Council for added protection. 

 A member asked if there would be refresher training for staff to help protect against cyber 

attacks and malware.  It was confirmed that all staff would be required to undertake 

updated Information Governance Training and it was being decided whether the training 

could be mandatory for staff to complete every 12 months. 

 A member highlighted that elected members needed to be included for this training. 

 A member asked if the cyber security risk could be lowered from high and it was confirmed 

that it would stay at high (as with other public organisations) due to the ever changing risk 

in this area. 

 The Chair asked if the six monthly review of the strategic risk register by the Audit and 

Accounts Committee was adequate as the frequency had been reduced.  It was confirmed 

that both cabinet and this committee now received a six monthly update but if there were 

any material concerns in between times officers and LMs could and would escalate any 

concerns/issues to this committee and Cabinet.   

 

Page 9



Audit & Accounts Committee 26.01.22                                                                                                                                        6 
 

Resolved:  That, the Committee noted the contents of the Half-year 2021/22 Strategic Risk 

Register update attached at Appendix 1. 
 

10. Internal Audit progress report 

The Internal Audit Manager (David Smith) introduced the report and highlighted the following. 

 The purpose of this report was to inform Members of the resources utilised by Internal Audit 

during 2021/22, the activities undertaken in the reporting period, and the status of work 
currently being undertaken. 

 There had been four final reports issued since the last report and al the recommendations 

had been actioned and the reports produced and level of assurance for each were outlined 
as shown below. 

o Members’ allowances and payments – level of assurance = high 
o Accounts payable – level of assurance = satisfactory 
o St Andrew’s CE Primary School (Boothstown) – level of assurance = satisfactory 

o St Edmunds RC Primary School – level of assurance = satisfactory 

 A Post Implementation Report (PIR) had been issued for St Thomas of Canterbury RC 

Primary School.  The judgement was limited but the assurance for the direction of travel 
was high as the school was implementing the new practice and it was considered too early 

to judge it as embedded.  

 The other work undertaken was highlighted and included assurance work (reporting); work 
around information governance data/digital; supporting squads with transformation and 

change; and resources.  It was reported that internal audit staff were engaged ensuring the  
distribution of business grants that had started again due to the Omicron variant of Covid 

and the Government restrictions.  

 The table for the internal investigations carried out during the financial year to date, had 
been updated. 

 The Counter Fraud table contained more detail to support the committee in its work. 

 The Audit Plan shown in Table 2 was highlighted. 

 
The Chair invited questions and comments from members on the Charter and the following 

was raised. 

 A member highlighted that the Renumeration Panel for members had been held last year 

but that was not reflected in the report.  This point was noted. 
 

Resolved:  That, the Committee thanked the Internal Audit Manager for the report and noted 

the report. 
 

11. External Auditors Audit Committee update 

The representative from the external auditors (Karen Murray) presented the report and 

highlighted the following. 

 The report included: 

o The audit progress:  It was confirmed that there was one outstanding item – Pension 

liability and the legal advice obtained from the Council was a priority for consideration. 

o National publications:  the National Audit Office’s guidance for committees was 

highlighted and it was recommended that this was brought to the attention of the 

members who had not been in attendance. 

 The aim was to bring the Value for Money (VFM) report to the next meeting. 

 The 21/22 Audit Strategy Memorandum would be presented at the next meeting. 

 

Page 10



Audit & Accounts Committee 26.01.22                                                                                                                                        7 
 

The Chair invited questions and comments from members on the Charter and there were none 

raised at this time. 

The Chair concluded by saying that the main concern for the committee was that the audit of 

the accounts was completed so they could be approved and signed off. 

Resolved:  That, the Committee noted the reported.  

 

12. The work programme 

a. The work programme:  It was agreed there were no amendments required at this time. 

b. Membership: Following the resignation of Vittoria Bugana a new co-opted member would 

need to be appointed.  The members agreed to advertise and recruit as they had for the 

most recent appointment and agreed the appointment panel as: 

 Councillor Robin Garrido (Chair) 

 Councillor John Walsh (committee member) 

 Iolanda Puzio (City Solicitor/Monitoring Officer) 

 Simon Bleckly (Head of Internal Audit) 

Resolved:  That, the Committee agreed the procedure and panel for the appointment of the 

co-opted member as outlined above. 

 

13. URGENT BUSINESS – PART 1 

There was no urgent Part 1 business. 
 

14. Date of the next meeting 

The date of the future meeting listed below were confirmed and it was agreed that members 

would meet from 1:45pm for the 2pm start.   

 Wednesday 23rd March 2022 

 

  

Page 11



Audit & Accounts Committee 26.01.22                                                                                                                                        8 
 

Committee Members attendance 2020/21 

 = present; A = Apologies submitted; Blank = No apologies submitted.  
 
 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Councillor/Member Name June 

23.06.21 

July 

30.07.21 

Sept 

29.09.21 

Oct 

27.10.21 

Jan 

26.01.22 

March 

23.03.22 

Councillor R Garrido (chair)       

Councillor M Pevitt A A A A   

Councillor R Jones  A A     

Councillor G Reynolds A      

Councillor A Shama       

Councillor P Tresadern  A     

Councillor R Walker  A     

Councillor John Walsh    A   

Councillor B Hinds (invitee) online A A A   

Vittoria Bugana 
(co-opted member) 

 
 

A A A A   

Edoardo Bucci  

(co-opted member) 
 

 A     

Page 12



 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 

 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER  

AND 

THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT  

 

TO THE AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 23rd MARCH 2022 

 

TITLE: Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: That Members note this report as part of their monitoring 

role and the requirement to evaluate whether the internal audit service complies with 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: This report sets out the assessment of the adequacy and 

effectiveness of the council’s internal audit service.  

Self-assessment of the service against the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

has been undertaken on an annual basis since 2013 and in November 2017 an 
external assessment of the service was undertaken against the standards and the 
CIPFA Local Government Application Note questionnaire.  

The Local Government Application Note questionnaire was updated by CIPFA during 
2019/20 and the latest version has been used for this year’s self-assessment. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 Internal Audit Charter 

 Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme 

 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and LGAN 

 PSIAS code of practice checklist 

 

KEY DECISION: No 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 2 

DETAILS: 

1.0 Background 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) introduced from 1 April 2013 
(amended 2017), are designed to create consistency for the practice of internal audit 

across the public sector and establish the basis for its quality assurance. The 
standards are based on the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors international 

standards and the requirements of the PSIAS for internal audit in Local Government 
are mandatory for all principal local authorities and other relevant bodies subject to 
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  

The Audit and Accounts Committee provides the council with assurance about the 
quality and reliability of both the financial and non-financial information it receives. 

The Committee must satisfy itself that the key business risks within the council are 
being adequately managed through a sound framework of internal controls. The 
Committee needs to know that the right systems are in place, that they are being 

monitored and that information they receive about them is reported to them at the 
right level of detail. 

The primary responsibility for providing assurance on the adequacy of governance, 
risk management and controls rests with management. It is management's job to 
provide leadership and direction to employees in respect of risk management, and to 

control the organisation's overall risk-taking activities in relation to the agreed level of 
risk appetite.  

However, the Committee also needs independent assurance to validate management 
assurance and reflect the wider picture. An independent internal audit function will, 
through a risk-based approach to its work, provide assurance to the Audit & Accounts 

Committee and senior management.  

The assurance provided by internal audit, based upon the work performed, provides 

an independent and objective assessment of both how well the organisation is 
managing risk and whether the measures put in place to mitigate risk are working 
effectively.  

2.0 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards – Assessment of Internal Audit 

Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP)  

The PSIAS require the Head of Internal Audit to develop and maintain a QAIP to 
enable the internal audit activity to be assessed against the standards.  

The PSIAS contain the requirement that the QAIP must include both internal and 

external assessments of internal audit. The internal assessment should be both 
ongoing and periodical through self-assessment or by other persons within the 

organisation with sufficient knowledge of internal audit practices.  

The external assessments should be undertaken at least once every five years by a 
qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from outside the organisation. 

The external assessments can be in the form of a full external assessment, or a self-
assessment with independent external validation. The next External Assessment is 

due in 2022/23.  

Page 14



 3 

 

External Assessment of Internal Audit 

The North West Heads of Internal Audit group established a process of peer review 

to undertake the necessary external assessments in a cost effective way. The group 
developed an approach and methodology that was used by the North West 

authorities who took part. 

The external assessment of the internal audit service was undertaken during 
November 2017, the assessment was an independent external validation of the self-

assessment. The external assessment of internal audit noted that the internal audit 
service conforms to the PSIAS and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note 

questionnaire.  

An action plan was developed to address any partially compliant areas against the 
standards. The updated action plan is attached at Appendix A to this report.   

Self-Assessment of Internal Audit 

A self-assessment of the service has been completed using the checklist for 

assessing performance attached to the PSIAS local government application note. 
The exercise concluded that service continues to conform to the PSIAS and the 
CIPFA Local Government Application Note questionnaire. 

As part of the ongoing assessment of the service we continue to report key 
performance indicators to the Committee. We also issue client satisfaction surveys 

after each audit review.  

3.0 Conclusion  

Based on my assessment of internal audit, the service can provide the vital role of 

assessing that the council has appropriate risk management processes, governance 
arrangements and a sound system of internal control.  

The progress that I have been reporting to the Section 151 officer and the Audit and 

Accounts Committee at their meetings; supports my key objective to provide an 
overall Head of Internal Audit opinion on these arrangements for 2021/22.   

This will be based on the work undertaken by internal audit and will take into account 
the framework of assurance in place that supports the internal control environment 
and the Annual Governance Statement; and the CIPFA guidance on the opinion for 

2021/22. 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: None noted 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: None noted 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low 

Page 15



 4 

A key requirement for the Audit and Accounts Committee in order for the Committee 
to meet its Terms of Reference is to assess the adequacy of the internal audit 
service. A key requirement in producing the Annual Governance Statement is to be 

able to place reliance on the Opinion and Annual Report of the Head of Internal 
Audit.   

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Nicky Smith Senior Solicitor 

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires every local authority to make 
arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs and to secure that 
one of their officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs. The 

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 also require authorities to ensure that they 
have a sound system of internal control which: 

a) facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its aims 
and objectives; 

b) ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is 

effective; and 
c) includes effective arrangements for the management of risk. 

A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management control and governance processes, taking into 
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance. 

In that regard, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (CIPFA/IIA) requires an 
authority’s chief audit executive to develop and maintain a quality assurance and 

improvement programme that covers all aspects of the internal audit activity. The 
quality assurance and improvement programme must include both internal and 
external assessments. Internal assessments include the ongoing monitoring of the 

performance of the internal audit activity and periodic self-assessment or assessment 
by other persons within the organisation with sufficient knowledge if internal audit 

practices  

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 

Page 16



 5 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Simon Bleckly, Head of Audit TEL NO: Ext. 6651 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: N/A 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

Page 1 of 3 

 

   
Salford City Council Internal Audit Service – PSIAS Action Table 

 
The following points for consideration to develop the Audit Function arose from the most recent external assessment. All the other actions 
arising from the external assessment have been previously reported to this Committee as completed. 
 

Rec 

No. 

Points for consideration Responsible officer Action Agreed March 2022 Update 

4 Feedback from the Chief Executive and / or 

the Chair of the Audit and Accounts 

Committee should be sought and provided 

as part of the Head of Internal Audit’s 

appraisal process. 

Head of Internal Audit Feedback from Audit and Accounts 

Committee Chair and S151 will  be requested 
to inform the S151 at Warrington re CAE 
appraisal process.  

 

Ongoing: Feedback will  be requested 

to inform the S151 at Warrington re 
CAE appraisal process as required. 

10 The assurance mapping exercise should be 

completed to support the audit planning 

process, and provide a clearer 

demonstration of how risks to the 

organisation are considered and assessed 

during the process of producing the annual 

Internal Audit plan.  

Head of Internal Audit Agreed.  

Original target: June 2018 

 

 

 

Target date: March 2023 

Ongoing: The ‘audit universe’ 
update and light touch ‘assurance 

mapping’ exercise was completed 
for Place Service Group and used to 
inform the 21/22 planning process 

complimenting the strategic risk 
register.  

In 2022/23, the CAE will  be working 
with the Officer Governance Group 

to develop a more structured 
assurance mapping process for the 
council. As part of this, we will  look 

to create a dedicated assurance map 
for the Internal Audit work 
programme to show how our third 
l ine of assurance fits within the 

corporate framework.  

P
age 19



Appendix A 

Page 2 of 3 

 

11 The audit planning process should be 

supported by a fully documented audit 

universe to support a more methodical 

approach to the consideration and 

assessment of risk in the development of 

the annual Internal Audit plan. 

Head of Internal Audit Agreed.  

Target date: March 2023 

Ongoing: As 10 above. This process 

will  help to formalise the view of the 
assurances provided around the key 

areas of governance, risk and 
control.  

 

P
age 20



Appendix A 

Page 3 of 3 

 

Salford City Council Internal Audit Service – Self Assessment Action Table 
 

The following action items have been identified from the most recent self-assessment exercise carried out against the checklist for assessing conformance 
with the PSIAS.  We do not consider that these are sufficiently material to lead to a non-compliance with the PSIAS, but will be addressed as part of the 
Internal Audit service’s commitment to deliver continuous improvement.  
 

PSIAS 

Ref 

Points for consideration Responsible officer Action 

1000 The Internal Audit Charter needs to clearly set out how it 

provides assurances to parties external to the Council.  This 
happens very rarely, but needs to be formalised. 

Head of Internal Audit 

Target date: 30 April  2022 

Charter to be reviewed to include a protocol for 

providing assurance to external parties, to allow each 
request to be considered on its merits and a decision 
made that maintains audit independence and ensures 

that the work is within auditors’ competencies and legal 
powers. 

2110 Internal audit needs to evaluate the design, implementation 

and effectiveness of the council’s ethics -related objectives, 
programmes and activities.  Ethics related matters are 
included in the audit plan, but there has been no structured 

approach to ensuring that auditors are sufficiently skilled to 
undertake such work, or to have an adequate understanding 
of assurances obtained in this area from other sources. 

Head of Internal Audit. 

Target date: 30 September 
2022 

Internal Audit training and development plan to be 

reviewed and appropriate training identified for the 
relevant auditors around ethical auditing, also to include 
auditing the green agenda if suitable training is available. 

2120 Internal Audit should evaluate the effectiveness of the 

council’s risk management processes.  This is currently done 
indirectly as part of the risk-based audit approach, but a 

more formal review is required.  Initial enquiries were made 
before the pandemic for a “peer review” of the RM process 
to be carried out by officers from Warrington Borough 
Council, but this was not put into practice. 

Head of Internal Audit. 

Target date: 30 September 
2022 

Reassess the proposal for Warrington, or another local 

authority to carry out a “peer review” on the RM process 
during 2022/23 

 

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 

 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER  

AND 

THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT  

 

TO THE AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 23rd MARCH 2022 

 

TITLE: Audit and Accounts Committee Terms of Reference (2022/23) 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: That Members review and re-approve the current Audit 

and Accounts Committee Terms of Reference. 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: The Audit & Accounts Committee is a key component of 

the council’s corporate governance. It provides an independent and high-level focus 

on the audit, assurance and reporting arrangements that underpin good governance 
and financial standards, in line with the approved Terms of Reference. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 

 CIPFA’s Position Statement: Practical Guidance for Audit Committees in local 

Government and Police (2018) 

 

KEY DECISION: No 

 

DETAILS: There is a requirement that this document should be reviewed on an 

annual basis or with any changes to the Constitution. 

The Terms of Reference were last approved by the Audit & Accounts Committee on 

24th March 2021. 

There have been no amendments to the Terms of Reference since the version first 
approved by the Audit & Accounts Committee on 27th March 2019. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



 2 

The version of the Committee’s Terms of Reference included within the published 
Council Constitution does not yet reflect the changes approved at by the Audit and 
Accounts Committee at their meeting on the 27th March 2019. For transparency, 

these differences are highlighted in yellow within the attached paper. It is the 
intention that the changes will be incorporated into the published constitution in due 

course. 

A flowchart of the Audit and Accounts Committee’s escalation plan is also included 
as Appendix A and is unchanged. 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 
 The Council Constitution 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: None noted 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Nicky Smith, Senior Solicitor 

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires every local authority to make 

arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs and to secure that 
one of their officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs. 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 also require authorities to ensure that they 

have a sound system of internal control which: 

a) facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its aims 

and objectives; 
b) ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is 

effective; and 

c) includes effective arrangements for the management of risk. 

A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 

effectiveness of its risk management control and governance processes, taking into 
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance. 

The authority must each financial year, conduct a review of the effectiveness of its 

internal control. In that regard, the Terms of Reference for the Audit and Accounts 
Committee have been reviewed to ensure that they are fit for purpose and reflect the 

committee’s delegated powers. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Simon Bleckly (Head of Internal Audit) 

There are no financial implications associated with this document. 

Page 24



 3 

 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Christine Flisk (Procurement 

Manager) 

There are no known procurement implications with this report. 

 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Catherine Sharples (HR Manager) 

There are no known HR implications with this report. 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Simon Bleckly, Head of Audit TEL NO: 01925 442217 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: N/A 
 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



3 

 

AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 
 

Membership 
 

Membership of the Audit and Accounts Committee will be eight members of the 

council, appointed in accordance with the principles of political balance, together with 
two independent non-voting co-opted members. The Chair of the Audit and Accounts 
Committee shall not be a member of the majority political group. 

 
Members of the Audit and Accounts Committee will be appointed by the council. All 

Cabinet members and the elected City Mayor will not be eligible to sit on the Audit 
and Accounts Committee. The Lead Member for Finance and Support Services or 
such other Lead Member as designated by the City Mayor from time to time will be 

authorised to attend meetings of the Committee but not vote. 
 

The Quorum shall be three members of the Audit and Accounts Committee.  
 

Responsibilities 
 

The powers and responsibilities of the Audit and Accounts Committee fall in the 

areas described below:  
 

Purpose  

1. The audit committee is a key component of Salford City Council’s corporate 
governance. It provides an independent and high-level focus on the audit, 

assurance and reporting arrangements that underpin good governance and 
financial standards.  

2. The purpose of the audit committee is to provide independent assurance to the 

members of the adequacy of the risk management framework and the internal 
control environment. It provides independent review of the council’s 

governance, risk management and control frameworks and oversees the 
financial reporting and annual governance processes. It oversees internal audit 
and external audit, helping to ensure efficient and effective assurance 

arrangements are in place.  

Governance, risk and control 

3. To review the council’s corporate governance arrangements against the good 
governance framework including the ethical framework and consider annual 
governance reports and the local code of governance and to recommend their 

adoption when satisfied. 

4. To review the Annual Governance Statement prior to approval and consider 

whether it properly reflects the risk environment and supporting assurances, 
taking into account internal audit’s opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the council’s framework of governance, risk management and 

control and to recommend its adoption when satisfied.  

Page 27



4 

 

5. To maintain an overview of the council’s Constitution in respect of Contract 
Procurement Rules and Financial Regulations. 

6. To consider the council’s arrangements to secure value for money and review 

assurances and assessments on the effectiveness of these arrangements.  

7. To consider the council’s framework of assurance and ensure that it 

adequately addresses the risks and priorities of the council.  

8. To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management in the 
council.  

9. To monitor progress in addressing risk-related issues reported to the 
committee.  

10. To consider reports on the effectiveness of internal controls and monitor the 
implementation of agreed actions.  

11. To review the assessment of fraud risks and potential harm to the council from 

fraud and corruption.  

12. To monitor the counter-fraud strategy, actions and resources.  

13. To review the governance and assurance arrangements for significant 
partnerships or collaborations.  

Internal audit  

14. To approve the internal audit charter.  

15. To review proposals made in relation to the provision of internal audit services 

and to make recommendations.  

16. To approve the risk-based internal audit plan, including internal audit’s 
resource requirements, the approach to using other sources of assurance and 

any work required to place reliance upon those other sources.  

17. To approve significant interim changes to the risk-based internal audit plan and 
resource requirements.  

18. To make appropriate enquiries of both management and the head of internal 
audit to determine if there are any inappropriate scope or resource limitations.  

19. To consider any impairments to independence or objectivity arising from 
additional roles or responsibilities outside of internal auditing of the head of 
internal audit. To approve and periodically review safeguards to limit such 

impairments. 

20. To consider reports from the head of internal audit on internal audit’s 

performance during the year, including the performance of external providers 
of internal audit services. These will include:  

a) Updates on the work of internal audit including key findings, issues of 

concern and action in hand as a result of internal audit work.  

b) Regular reports on the results of the Quality Assurance and 

Improvement Programme.  

c) Reports on instances where the internal audit function does not conform 
to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Local Government 

Application Note, considering whether the non-conformance is 

Page 28



5 

 

significant enough that it must be included in the Annual Governance 
Statement.  

21. To consider the head of internal audit’s annual report:  

a) The statement of the level of conformance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards and Local Government Application Note and 

the results of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme that 
supports the statement – these will indicate the reliability of the 
conclusions of internal audit.  

b) The opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the council’s 
framework of governance, risk management and control together with 

the summary of the work supporting the opinion as these will assist the 
committee in reviewing the Annual Governance Statement.  

22. To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested.  

23. To receive reports outlining the action taken where the head of internal audit 
has concluded that management has accepted a level of risk that may be 

unacceptable to the authority or there are concerns about progress with the 
implementation of agreed actions.  

24. To contribute to the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme and in 

particular, to the external quality assessment of internal audit that takes place 
at least once every five years.  

25. To consider a report on the effectiveness of internal audit to support the Annual 
Governance Statement, where required to do so by the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations.  

26. To support the development of effective communication with the head of 
internal audit. To provide free and unfettered access to the audit committee 
chair for the head of internal audit, including the opportunity for a private 

meeting with committee.  

27. Where appropriate, to refer matters of concern to the Overview and Scrutiny 

Board or the relevant Scrutiny Panel.  

28. The Audit and Accounts committee has the power to call an officer to attend 
the committee to account to the committee the reason(s) for non-

implementation of agreed internal audit recommendations.  

External audit  

29. To support the independence of external audit through consideration of the 
external auditor’s annual assessment of its independence and review of any 
issues raised by Public Sector Audit Appointments.  

30. To consider the external auditor’s annual letter, relevant reports, and the report 
to those charged with governance.  

31. To consider specific reports as agreed with the external auditor.  

32. To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it 
gives value for money.  

33. To commission work from internal and external audit.  

Page 29



6 

 

34. To advise and recommend on the effectiveness of relationships between 
external and internal audit and other inspection agencies or relevant bodies.  

Financial reporting  

35. To review the annual statement of accounts. Specifically, to consider whether 
appropriate accounting policies have been followed and whether there are 

concerns arising from the financial statements or from the audit, that need to 
be brought to the attention of the council.  

36. To review and approve the council’s financial statements and Letter of 

Representation to the External Auditors 

37. To consider the external auditor’s report to those charged with governance on 

issues arising from the audit of the accounts.  

Accountability arrangements  

38. To report to full council on an annual basis on the committee’s performance in 

relation to the terms of reference and the effectiveness of the committee in 
meeting its purpose.  

39. To publish an annual report on the work of the committee to the Cabinet. 

Delegation 

 

In exercising the above powers and responsibilities, the Audit and Accounts 
Committee shall have delegated power to make decisions and act on behalf of the 

council. 
 

Note 
 
The committee may itself determine not to exercise its delegated powers and may 

instead make recommendations to council.  
 
 

 
 

 

Page 30



7 

 

 

Members receive summary 

report via email 

Any 
concerns? 

No further 
action 

Contact Audit and the Chair to 

raise concern/ request full report 

Continued 

concerns? 

Issue raised for consideration 
by 

Audit & Accounts Committee 

Continued 
concerns? 

Could invite 
appropriate person to 

give evidence 

Refer to Overview & 
Scrutiny 

via Scrutiny Chairs 

Continued 
concerns 

concerns
? 

Chairs refer issue to 

appropriate Scrutiny 
Committee for consideration 

Chairs will 
consider 

request / 
investigate 

YES 

 

No further 

action 
NO 

YES 

 

NO YES 
 

YES 

 

YES 
 

No further 
action 

No further 
action 

NO 

NO 

YES 
 

NO 

Reply to email 
and copy to 

Chair & 

Scrutiny 

Contact Scrutiny 
to put on Audit & 

Accounts 

Committee agenda 

Appendix A - Audit & Accounts Committee Escalation Plan 

NO 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



External Audit Progress Report

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 9



2

1. Audit Progress

2. National publications

P
age 34



Section 01:

Audit Progress

P
age 35



4

Audit Progress

Background

This section provides the Committee’s March 2022 meeting with updates on:

• progress in delivering the 2020/21 audit work; and

• the 2021/22 audit planning process.

2020/21 Audit

The position on the key elements of the audit are as follows:

Financial Statements Audit

Our Audit Completion Report was presented at the Committee’s October 2021 meeting. We have not yet issued the audit opinion as there is an outstanding issue relating to the 
accounting treatment of the pension liability for social care staff who transferred across the NHS Trust as part of the integration of health and social care services.   

The table on the next page summarises the outcome of the work that was reported as outstanding in the Audit Completion report with the exception of the pension issue above.

P
age 36



5

Audit Progress

P
age 37



6

Audit Progress

Value for money arrangements 

As summarised in our Audit Completion Report we anticipate having no significant weaknesses in arrangements to report in relation to the arrangements that the Council has in 
place to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. Our work is now complete and we have drafted our value for money commentary for agreement 
with officers.

Other auditor responsibilities 

We have not needed to take any action in relation to any of our broader auditor responsibilities.

We have not yet issued the Audit Certificate for 2020/21, which formally closes the audit because the whole of government accounts (WGA) work is outstanding. We expect the 
National Audit Office to confirm their WGA requirements in Spring 2022 and will update the Committee at its next meeting.   

2021/22 Audit

At this stage we do not expect any significant changes to the audit risk profile and the overall audit approach, and we have not identified any significant changes to the financial 
reporting requirements under the 2021/22 CIPFA Code. The operating and financial environment for councils continues to be challenging and it is important our audit plan is 
properly tailored to the risks and issues. We will hold further planning discussions with management to identify any opportunities for improvement for 2021/22. We will share our 
2021/22 Audit Strategy Memorandum with the Audit and Accounts Committee.   

P
age 38



Section 02:

National publications

P
age 39



15 March 2022 8

National publications
Publication/update Key points

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountability (CIPFA)

1.

Emergency proposals for an update of the 

2021/22 Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom and the 

2022/23 Code

CIPFA published a consultation on emergency proposals for the update of the 2021/22 (and 2022/23) 

Code. They are aimed at improving the completion rates for publication of audited accounts and include:

• delaying the implementation of IFRS 16 for at least 1 year, so the implementation date would now be 1 April 

2023 at the earliest; and

• allowing for an optional pause of the property revaluation cycle.

Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities

2.
Measures to improve local audit delays and 

accounts and audit timetable confirmed

DLUHC have announced a new package of measure to support the improved timeliness of local audit. These 

include additional funds and an extension of the deadline for publishing accounts.

National Audit Office (NAO)

3. 
AGN/03 – Auditor’s work on Value for Money 

Arrangements – Updated Guidance

NAO has updated its guidance and confirmed there are no significant changes to the expected approach or 

timetable.

4. 
NAO publication: Good practice in annual 

reporting
Interactive guide with illustrative examples.

5. NAO report: Supporting local economic growth Lessons learned from implementing local growth policies.

6.
Investigation into the implementation of IR35 tax 

reforms
Lessons learned from the implementation of 2017 reforms to tax rules for off-payroll working in the public sector.

7.
NAO Report – The rollout of the COVID-19 

vaccination programme in England

P
age 40



9

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

CIPFA

1. Emergency proposals for an update of the 2021/22 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom and the 2022/23 Code, February 
2022

CIPFA LASAAC has issued an exceptional consultation on time limited changes to the code to help alleviate delays to the publication of audited financial statements. Only 
9% of local authority accounts in England met the audit publication deadline of 30 September 2021. The consultation closes on 3 March 2022. 

In December 2021, the Department of Levelling-up Housing and Communities asked CIPFA LASAAC to consider ways in which the code may ameliorate this crisis position. 
CIPFA LASAAC considered this request and has issued this exceptional consultation, which explores two possible changes that might be made as an update to the 2021/22 
code and to the agreed position in the 2022/23 code. After considering a wide range of options CIPFA LASAAC decided to explore two approaches: 

• an adaptation to the code to allow local authorities to pause professional valuations for operational property, plant and equipment for a period of up to two years (though 
the initial proposal is for the 2021/22 financial year); this approach also explores the use of an index to be used to increase or reduce that valuation

• deferring the implementation of IFRS 16 Leases for a further year and reversing the planned changes to the 2022/23 code to implement that standard. 

The consultation also shows the wide range of options that CIPFA LASAAC considered, which includes some which the board considered were outside of its terms of 
reference. 

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/consultations/emergency-proposals-for-update-of-202122-and-2022223-codes

P
age 41

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/consultations/emergency-proposals-for-update-of-202122-and-2022223-codes


10

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities

2. A new package of measures to support the improved timeliness of local audit

This publication sets out a range of measures agreed with key partners to support the timely completion of local government audits and the ongoing stability of the local 
audit market. The measures include:

• Steps to increase the number of auditors with skills to carry out the work;

• Additional funding to support increases in audit fees; and

• Extension of the audit deadlines to 30 November 2022 and 30 September for 2023 onwards.  

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/measures-to-improve-local-audit-delays?utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=govuk-notifications&utm_source=81365e1a-e6b1-4c1b-bce1-
b5ef8fafef6f&utm_content=daily#section-4-longer-term-measures-to-help-stabilise-the-market-and-address-long-term-supply-issues

3. AGN/03 – Auditor’s work on Value for Money Arrangements – Updated Guidance, December 2021

NAO has updated its guidance and confirmed there are no significant changes to the expected approach or timetable for 2021/22 audits.

The guidance can be seen at this link: https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/guidance-and-information-for-auditors/

P
age 42

https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/guidance-and-information-for-auditors/


15 March 2022 11

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

National Audit Office

4. NAO publication: Good practice in annual reporting, January 2022

The NAO has published an interactive guide that sets out good annual reporting and provides illustrative examples taken from public sector organisations who are leading 
the way in this area. The guide draws on examples of good practice from within the following sections of an Annual Report:

• Strategy

• Risk

• Operations

• Governance

• Measures of success

• Financial performance

• External factors

It also provides further examples where bodies have made their context more understandable to the reader through use of graphics and clear language and signposting. 
The list is not definitive, but the NAO hopes it provides ideas for all bodies to think about as they plan their annual reporting for 2021-22.

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/good-practice-in-annual-reports/

P
age 43

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/good-practice-in-annual-reports/


15 March 2022 12

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

National Audit Office

5. NAO report: Supporting local economic growth, February 2022

The NAO has published its report Supporting local economic growth which considers lessons the Department for Levelling Up, Housing & Communities (the Department) 

has learned from implementing local growth policies, and how it has applied them. It examines how it has applied these lessons to the one-year UK Community Renewal 

Fund and the following place-based interventions:

• Levelling Up Fund;

• UK Shared Prosperity Fund;

• Towns Fund; and

• Freeports

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/supporting-local-economic-recovery/

P
age 44

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/supporting-local-economic-recovery/


13

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

National Audit Office

6. Investigation into the implementation of IR35 tax reforms, February 2022

The NAO has published its Investigation into the implementation of IR35 tax reforms which examines lessons from the implementation of 2017 reforms to tax rules for off-
payroll working in the public sector. The government initially introduced these rules, commonly known as ‘IR35’, in the Finance Act 2000. Its objective was to prevent tax 
avoidance by ‘disguised employees’ – people who do the same job in the same manner as an employee but who avoid income tax and National Insurance contributions 
(NICs) by providing services through an intermediary such as a personal service company (PSC).

The reports sets out how HMRC introduced the 2017 IR35 reforms, the approach it has taken since, and what lessons it has learned and taken forward when extending the 
reforms to the private and third sectors in 2021. The report is in five parts, covering:

• The new IR35 requirements on public bodies from 2017;

• What HMRC did to mitigate risks it identified to compliance, public bodies and workers, including guidance and support, monitoring and adaptation;

• What impact the roll-out has had on public bodies, workers and tax revenue;

• How HMRC assesses public bodies’ compliance with the IR35 rules and what it has found to date; and

• How HMRC has adapted its implementation of the next.

The report concludes that rolling out the IR35 reforms to the public sector first has meant an opportunity for HMRC to learn lessons and adapt its approach. The 2017 
reforms have achieved their primary purpose of reducing non-compliance and therefore increasing tax revenue. However, the public sector faced challenges with the initial 
roll-out: public bodies had little time to prepare; some found it difficult to use the original guidance and tool that HMRC had provided; and there was a limited understanding 
on all sides of how much time and resource were needed to get it right. As a result, it was highly likely that some public bodies would make mistakes. 

By changing its approach, both in the public sector and when extending the reforms to the private and third sectors, HMRC appears to have learned several key lessons 
and addressed some of the more significant difficulties, including enabling more support and time for the transition. Questions remain about the system for addressing 
incorrect determinations, with routes of appeal untested and tax burdens in cases of non-compliance likely to fall on employers. There are also differences between the 
public and private sectors that increase the inherent challenges. HMRC faces new risks that will make it harder to identify, monitor and address non-compliance, including 
larger and more complex labour markets in the private sector. HMRC will need to manage these risks if it is to ensure the reforms are successful.

P
age 45



14

NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

National Audit Office

7. NAO Report – The rollout of the COVID-19 vaccination programme in England, February 2022

The NAO has recently published its report: The rollout of the COVID-19 vaccination programme in England - National Audit Office (NAO) Report In December 2020, the 
NAO published our Investigation into preparations for potential COVID-19 vaccines. This report extends our examination up to the end of October 2021, by which time four 
vaccines had been approved for use and the rollout of first and second doses of COVID-19 vaccinations to adults had taken place.

A number of national and local bodies have been involved in the COVID-19 vaccine programme including the Department for Health & Social Care (DHSC), NHS England 
and NHS Improvement (NHSE&I), and a range of local healthcare providers – NHS hospitals, GPs and community pharmacies.

The report finds that the vaccine programme has operated at unprecedented pace, scale and complexity, and in conditions of profound uncertainty, to achieve the pressing 
objectives of supporting the creation of vaccines, securing access to them, and administering them to the population as quickly as possible. It is through the collective efforts 
of many national and local public bodies, scientists, vaccine manufacturers, and individual staff and volunteers, as well as government’s power as a coordinator and funder, 
that so many of the programme’s objectives have been met and in some areas exceeded. The evidence indicates that the programme has saved lives and reduced the 
incidence of serious illness and hospitalisation.

Given the unprecedented circumstances of the pandemic and the programme’s achievements up to October 2021, we assess that it has provided value for money to date. 
Much about COVID-19, the vaccines market and the UK’s future requirements remains unpredictable but far more is now known than in 2020. The programme needs to 
identify a clear path to a future sustainable model, securing the benefits of its many innovations and ensuring it has a full picture of costs and workforce requirements as it 
takes key decisions. It needs to challenge anew all elements of its cost base and adapt accordingly. Most importantly, it needs to maintain the high levels of vaccine uptake 
it has achieved among the general population and increase levels for groups where uptake still lags behind.

The full report is available from the NAO website.

P
age 46

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-roll-out-of-the-covid-19-vaccine-in-england/


Mazars

Mazars is an internationally integrated partnership, specialising in audit, accountancy, advisory, tax 

and legal services*. Operating in over 90 countries and territories around the world, we draw on the 

expertise of 40,400 professionals – 24,400 in Mazars’ integrated partnership and 16,000 via the 

Mazars North America Alliance – to assist clients of all sizes at every stage in their development.

*where permitted under applicable country laws.

www.mazars.com

Director: Karen Murray

Email:  karen.murray@mazars.co.uk

LinkedIn:

www.linkedin.com/company/Mazars

Twitter:

www.twitter.com/MazarsGroup

Facebook:

www.facebook.com/MazarsGroup

Instagram:

www.instagram.com/MazarsGroup

WeChat:

ID: Mazars

Contact Follow us:

Senior Manager: Cath Andrew

Email:  cath.andrew@mazars.co.uk

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 

 

REPORT OF THE 

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER & HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

 

TO THE AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 

ON WEDNESDAY 23rd MARCH 2022 

 

TITLE: Internal Audit Progress Report (January 2022 – March 2022) 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Members are requested to consider the contents of the 

report. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the 

resources utilised by Internal Audit during 2021/22, the activities undertaken in the 
reporting period, and the status of work currently being undertaken. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  

 Audit & Accounts Committee reports  

 Internal Audit’s management information systems 

 

KEY DECISION: No 

 

DETAILS: See appended report. 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: N/A 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  N/A 

 

Page 49

Agenda Item 10



 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Internal audit projects are managed within the Unit’s risk 

based audit protocols aimed at giving assurance regarding the management of the 
City Council’s key business risks. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 

Supplied by: Nicky Smith, Senior Solicitor  

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires every local authority to make 

arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs and to secure that 
one of their officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs. The 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 also require authorities to ensure that they 

have a sound system of internal control which: 

a) facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its aims 

and objectives; 
b) ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is 

effective; and 

c) includes effective arrangements for the management of risk. 

A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 

effectiveness of its risk management control and governance processes, taking into 
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance. 

In that regard, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (CIPFA/IIA) requires an 

authority’s chief audit executive to develop and maintain a quality assurance and 
improvement programme that covers all aspects of the internal audit activity. The 

quality assurance and improvement programme must include both internal and 
external assessments. Internal assessments include the ongoing monitoring of the 
performance of the internal audit activity.  

The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the resources utilised by Internal 
Audit, the activities undertaken in the reporting period, and the status of work 

currently being undertaken.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  

Supplied by: Simon Bleckly, Head of Internal Audit 

The audit plan is funded from within the revenue budget and there are no additional 
financial demands resulting from this report.

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS:  

Supplied by: Christine Flisk, Procurement Manager.  

There are no known procurement implications with this report. 

 

HR IMPLICATIONS:  

Supplied by: Catherine Sharples HR Manager 

Page 50



 

There are no known HR implications arising from this report. 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: None 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: David Smith, Internal Audit Manager, Ext. 6969 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: N/A 

  

Page 51



Internal Audit Progress Report  
March 2022 

Page 1 
 

INTRODUCTION 

This report provides Members of the Audit & Accounts Committee with details of the 
resources utilised by Internal Audit and outcomes, including work reported in this period, 

work currently being undertaken and new work commenced. 

AUDITS COMPLETED AND REPORTS ISSUED 

Table 1 below summarises the two audits that have been finalised since the last progress 

report to Audit and Accounts Committee, and the corresponding number of agreed actions 
and overall level of assurance provided for each of those audits.   

Summary Reports have been provided to Committee Members for each of these reviews.  

Table 1: Reports Issued  

Audit  
Number of agreed actions and priority Level of 

Assurance  Critical High Medium Low Total 

Placement Approval Process   

(Children and Young People U18) 
- - 2 - 2 High 

Ellenbrook Primary School – 
Holiday Club 

- 6 6 - 12 Limited 

Total:  - 6 8 - 14  

Any level of assurance given to each audit is a balanced judgement based upon the 
established system of controls, the subject’s approach to risk management, and the 

nature of any recommendations made and actions agreed. See Table 3 at the back of this 
report for explanations of the different levels of assurance. 

Actions are classified over the categories of critical, high, medium, and low. See Table 4 

at the back of this report for explanations of the different levels of priority.  

The agreed actions are designed to improve the control environment and/or improve 
‘value for money’ within the client’s area of responsibility and we can report that the 

actions made in this period have been agreed by management. 

Our audit reports include an action plan that records the detail of our findings, the agreed 
action that management intend to take in response to these findings and the timescale to 
undertake such action. This provides a record that progress can be measured against 

when we undertake our Post Implementation Reviews or follow-up work.  

OTHER WORK 

This section details other work completed by the audit team during the period. 

Assurance Work (Reporting)  

Work on the audit plan is noted in Table 2 at the back of this report.  

Draft reports have been issued or are being prepared in the following areas: 

 Mesne Lee Primary School 

 Mossfield Primary School 

Page 52



Internal Audit Progress Report  
March 2022 

Page 2 
 

 Gifts & Hospitality  

 Business Interests 

 Commercial Estate Management (Asset Valuations & Data Migration) 

 Construction Services (Inventory) 

 Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service 

 Asset Management (ICT)  

Information Governance and Data / Digital  

We provide ongoing assurance and consultative support to the council’s continued 
compliance with the requirements of: 

 ISO 27001 

 Payment Card Industry 

Supporting Squads, Transformation and Change 

Internal Audit is currently involved in ‘squads’ supporting: 

 Project Imagine (Replacement system for CareFirst): providing consultancy advice or 

independent assurance as/when our input is appropriate. 

Resources 

 Some audit fieldwork / reporting is less efficient than ‘normal’ due to the ongoing impact 

of the pandemic on the council’s services / auditees’ capacity.  

 New rounds of the Covid-19 business grants in response to the Omicron variant and 
ongoing assurance work on all Track and Trace isolation payments. This work is now 

coming to an end.   

 Sickness levels have increased during the autumn. In addition, a team member has 

been on maternity leave, returned in November but as part-time and another member 
of the team has reduced their working hours. These leave a shortfall in available days 

and we are reviewing the options available to the service.    

Collaboration 

 We have ongoing practitioner representation on sub groups of the North West Heads of 
Internal Audit Groups, the groups have been established to share good practice in 

audit across the region: 

o Contract Audit Group 

o IT Audit Group (chair) 

o Schools Audit Group (chair) 

o Fraud Group 

 The Internal Audit Manager is a member of CIPFA’s North West Audit Risk and 
Governance Group, which organises training and development events for public sector 

auditors within the region.  

Page 53



Internal Audit Progress Report  
March 2022 

Page 3 
 

 The Head of Internal Audit attends the North West Chief Audit Executive Group 
meetings, is a member of  the Local Authority Chief Auditors Network and chairs the 

Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally Operational Group. This enables the 
identification and sharing of best practice nationally in respect of internal audit and 
counter fraud. 

Internal Investigations & Corporate Counter Fraud 

The Internal Audit Team continues to be available to support the business with internal 
investigations, providing technical skills and advice when called upon and managing the 

whistleblowing hotline / online referrals.  

The following table has been updated to provide a more complete overview of allegations 
and other contacts through the council’s counter-fraud webpage, referral hot line, or direct 

contact, for the financial year-to-date. 

Type of Allegation or Contact Cumulative to Jan. Cumulative to Mar. 

Investigation - Counter Fraud Team 
(external) 

29 42 

Investigation - HR (IA Support/Advice) 2 2 

Investigation - Internal Audit (internal) 4  4 

Investigation - Service / Manager (IA 
Support/Advice) 

5  5 

NFA - Insufficient Info. 15 16 

NFA - No concerns 6 8 

NFA - Service Matter 3 3 

Referred - Council Tax / Business Rates 7 9 

Referred - DWP 6 6 

Referred - Environmental Health 2 2 

Referred - Housing  2 3 

Referred - Other Service 2 2 

Referred - Trading Standards 4 4 

Other   1 1 

Notes 

1. Whilst the above matters have either been referred in to Internal Audit or Internal Audit 
advice sought, not all fall within the definition of “whistle blowing” or necessarily relate to 
fraud, bribery or corruption, and no indication of the outcome of investigations is implied.   

2. Internal refers to work force matters. External refers to members of the public, for example, 
single person discount fraud. 

 

The Counter Fraud Team and some of the Audit Team are still spending a significant 
amount of time on assurance work around the various COVID-related grants and 
payments.   

Page 54



Internal Audit Progress Report  
March 2022 

Page 4 
 

Covid-19 Business Grants 

At the January meeting of this Committee members requested an overview of fraud, 
where recovery has been sought, in relation to the distribution of the Covid-19 Business 

Grants. The table below provides the current position in relation to the different schemes. 

Scheme Cases Value Recovered 

Spring/Summer 2020 (SBRR, RHLGF, ARG) 9 £90,000 £22,800 

Autumn/Winter 2020/21 (LRSG and ARG) 2 £23,472 0 

Winter 2021/22 (Omicron) 0 0 0 

The sole traders or businesses concerned have been invoiced by the council and there is 
ongoing work being undertaken to recover the funds. Whilst in our view, the information 
the council holds indicates that these were frauds, the facts may be disputed by the 
recipients and these figures are subject to change as more information is received.    

In most cases, (8 of the 11), the applicant had moved out of the premises prior to the date 
specified in the grant terms. Two of the applicants had never taken up occupation of the 

respective premises, but had sufficient details to make an application, and one applicant 
had ceased trading prior to the date specified in the grant terms. 

Schools Update 

Since resuming school visits in person during the autumn term 2021, we have undertaken 

seven reviews. Of these, five have been fully completed whilst two are currently at the 

reporting stage, and two others are close to reporting following completion of fieldwork. A 
further two schools have confirmed bookings for imminent visits, whilst four schools and a 
PRU do not have confirmed dates for visits but are planned for Quarter 1 of 2022/2023. 

Additionally, two post-implementation reviews have been completed. The two schools 

where post-implementation reviews were conducted had both been previously awarded a 

limited level of assurance. At the time of reporting, one school had only one action 
outstanding whilst the other had a significant number of actions still to complete. 

An analysis of the findings in relation to the completed reports indicates that there are 

some common themes where schools have been advised to undertake remedial actions. 
The most concerning amongst these refers to a lack of segregation of duties in relation to 

internet banking, a failure to pre-authorise and enter purchase orders onto the financial 
system in advance, lack of demonstrable governor approval and written quotes for high 
value expenditure, and a lack of scrutiny of ongoing contracts and SLAs.  

Of lesser concern, there are recurrent instances of failure to include detailed procedures 

within finance manuals, a lack of governor skills analysis, school funds not being kept up 

to date in terms of reconciliations and independent examinations, inventory records not 
comprehensively maintained, lack of evidence of payroll checks, out of date or non-
existent lettings policy and inconsistencies in charging, and a lack of checks regarding 

purchasing card expenditure. 

As common areas emerge, they are highlighted to schools via the regular news letters.  

Prior to the pandemic Internal Audit had made arrangements to present a report on the 
themes and trends to head teachers and school business managers. We will be revisiting 

Page 55



Internal Audit Progress Report  
March 2022 

Page 5 
 

this in the spring. We are also exploring the suitability and feasibility of the council’s 
intranet to communicate with schools.  

Planning is already underway for the next cohort of schools to be audited during 

2022/2023. We are adopting the usual approach of consulting with Governor Services, 
Children’s Services and Finance to gain information which will help prioritise the audits. 

We are taking into account ongoing risk factors including the time since the last review, 
changes in leadership and office staff at the school, and any other emerging intelligence.  

As schools are now able to ease certain measures and priorities can be realigned 

following the pandemic, we feel that leaders and office staff are in a position to catch up 
with the more routine financial and administrative tasks that may have slipped due to the 

pressures of the last two years.  

 

  

Page 56



Internal Audit Progress Report  
March 2022 

Page 6 
 

Table 2: Audit Plan 2021/22 

Audit / Activity Timing TOR  Reported Assurance Comments 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & RISK      

Governance Arrangements / AGS ongoing n/a n/a n/a  

Risk Management and Assurance Framework ongoing n/a n/a n/a  

Information Governance ongoing n/a n/a n/a  

Transformation, Change & Squads Support  ongoing n/a n/a n/a Ah hoc reviews as/when requested 

SERVICE REFORM (general)      

Housing Benefits Service Redesign (bf) Q1/Q2 11/08/21 19/10/21 High  

Member Allowances and Payments (bf) Q2/Q3 06/09/21 10/11/21 High  

Gifts & Hospitality  Q3 06/10/21 Draft TBC Finalising/Reporting 

Business Interests  Q3 06/10/21 Draft TBC 
Reactive work requested by the monitoring 
officer. Finalising/Reporting 

Key Decisions Q3/Q4 TBC TBC TBC 
Reactive work requested by the monitoring 

officer. Planning/fieldwork underway. 

Contract Management Ongoing n/a n/a n/a Ah hoc reviews as/when requested 

Agency Workers (bf) TBC    move to 2022/23 

Modern Slavery (bf) TBC    move to 2022/23 

Statutory Returns - Data Integrity & Resources (bf) TBC    move to 2022/23 

SERVICE REFORM (grants & compliance work) 

Greaves Trust Q3/4  n/a TBC TBC Planning 

Transport – Bus Subsidy Q2  n/a 27/09/21 Validated Annual  

 

 

 

P
age 57



Internal Audit Progress Report  
March 2022 

Page 7 
 

Audit / Activity Timing TOR  Reported Assurance Comments 

SERVICE REFORM (core financial systems)      

Payroll (Payments & Pay Overs) Q3 17/08/20 09/08/21 High   

Accounts Payable 2019/20 (bf) Q1 19/02/21 23/12/21 Satisfactory    

Treasury Management Q4 Draft TBC TBC Fieldwork underway 

Main Accounting System (bf) Q4    move to 2022/23 

Budgetary Control  22/23 n/a n/a n/a 
Hold pending development work (Move to 

2022/23) 

Service Reform (information technology and digital) 

Data Centre (Physical and Environmental Security)  Q4    
Planning (Site visit was put on hold due to 
Omicron variant) 

Asset Management   Q3 n/a TBC TBC Finalising the report 

PCI Compliance Ongoing n/a n/a n/a Ongoing / routine scans 

ISO 27001 Ongoing n/a n/a n/a 
Part of a 3 year cycle of work assisting with the 
accreditation process including ad hoc 

reporting.  

JCAD TBC  n/a n/a 
Ongoing / Consultancy assessment 
completed. Site visit/testing delayed by Covid-
19   

SAP Access Control Q4     

Data Analytics  Q4  n/a n/a Complete 

Consultancy support:  

 Information Strategy 

 Project Imagine (CareFirst system replacement) 

 SOC Support 

 Civica Pay 

 

Ongoing n/a n/a n/a Ongoing 

P
age 58



Internal Audit Progress Report  
March 2022 

Page 8 
 

Audit / Activity Timing TOR  Reported Assurance Comments 

PLACE      

CCTV Control Room (ISO Compliance) Q1 n/a 07/04/21 Validated   

Commercial Estate Management (Asset Valuations & 
Data Migration) 

Q3 20/09/21 Draft TBC  

Commercial Estate Management (Rent Reviews) Q3 20/09/21 TBC TBC Fieldwork nearing completion 

Construction Services (Inventory) Q3/Q4 08/12/21 Draft TBC  

Land Transactions Q3/Q4 Drafting TBC TBC Planning / Initial fieldwork 

Health & Safety  Q4    move to 2022/23 

Derive Q4    move to 2022/23 

Major Projects – University & Crescent Programme 
Governance 

Q2/Q3 15/10/21 n/a n/a 
On hold at client’s request – Potentially 
resuming Q1 2022/23 

PEOPLE      

Project Imagine Governance (2 months prior to go live) Q1 28/06/21 27/07/21 High  

Welfare Rights & Debt  Advice Service (bf) Q1 12/08/20 18/06/21 Limited  

Personal Budgets (Children & Families) (bf) Q1 20/08/19 20/09/21 Limited  

Helping Families (GM Troubled Families) Q2/Q3 15/07/21 22/10/21 High  

Placement Approval Process (children) Q3 15/10/21 16/02/22 High  

Child & Adolescent Mental Health Service Q3/4 18/10/21 TBC TBC Fieldwork near completion / reporting 

Early Help and The Bridge Partnership Q2/Q3 15/07/21 TBC TBC Pending delays to system development) 

Client Charging Policy (bf) / SCO Q3/4 02/12/21 TBC TBC Fieldwork underway 

Meeting Demand & Service Resilience (Post covid-19)  Q2/Q3 29/07/21 TBC TBC Fieldwork underway 

Home Care / SCO Q4    Planning underway 

Personal Budgets & Direct Payments (Adults) / SCO Q4 TBC TBC TBC move to 2022/23 

Care Homes (Provision of Places) Q4 n/a n/a n/a Cancelled 

P
age 59



Internal Audit Progress Report  
March 2022 

Page 9 
 

Audit / Activity Timing TOR  Reported Assurance Comments 

PEOPLE (Establishments)      

Children’s Homes TBC n/a Memo n/a Reactive / consultative work.   

Schools Financial Value Standard Q4/Q1 n/a n/a n/a Initial communications sent 

Brentnall Primary School Q1 n/a 04/05/21 High  

Moorfield Primary School (PIR) Q2 n/a 02/08/21 Limited *  

Westwood Park Primary School Q2  n/a 20/10/21 Satisfactory  

St Thomas of Canterbury (PIR) Q3 n/a 13/12/21 High*   

St Edmund’s RC Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a 10/01/22 Satisfactory  

St Andrew’s CE Boothstown Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a 24/11/21 Satisfactory  

Ellenbrook Primary School (Holiday Club) Q3 n/a 19/01/22 Limited Reactive work 

Mesne Lea Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a Draft TBC   

Mossfield Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a Draft TBC  

Springwood Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a   Fieldwork/Drafting report 

Godfrey Ermen Memorial CE Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a   Fieldwork/Drafting report 

Light Oaks Junior Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a   Booked in for March 

St Mary’s RC Swinton Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a   Booked in for March 

Clifton PRU Q3/Q4 n/a   Planning 

St Paul’s CE Nevile Road Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a   Planning 

River View Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a   Planning 

St Mark’s CE Worsley Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a   Planning 

St Charles RC Primary School Q3/Q4 n/a   Planning 

 * Indicative level of assurance, based on the progress made since the original audit review

P
age 60



Internal Audit Progress Report  
March 2022 

Page 10 
 

Table 3: Levels of Assurance 
 

Level of 
Assurance 

DESIGN: Findings DESIGN: Opinion EFFECTIVENESS: Findings EFFECTIVENESS: Opinion 

High Appropriate procedures and 

controls are in place to 

mitigate the key risks. 

There is a sound system of 

internal control designed to 

achieve objectives. 

No or only minor exception 

found in testing of procedures 

and controls. 

The controls that are in place 

are being consistently 

applied. 

Satisfactory In the main, there are 
appropriate procedures and 

controls in place to mitigate 

the key risks reviewed, albeit 
with some that are not fully 

effective. 

There is generally a sound 
system of internal control 

designed to achieve 

objectives, but with few 
exceptions. 

A small number of exceptions 
found in the testing of 

procedures and controls. 

There is evidence of non-
compliance with some 

controls, which may put 

achievement of some of 
operational objectives at risk. 

Limited 

 

A number of significant gaps 

identified in the procedures 
and controls in key areas. 

The system of internal 

controls is weakened by 
some significant gaps. 

A number of reoccurring 

exceptions found in testing of 
the procedures and controls. 

There is poor compliance 

with controls and procedures 
which may put operational 

objectives at risk of not being 

fully achieved. 

Minimal For all risk areas there are 

significant gaps in the 
procedure and control. This 

will affect the effectiveness of 

organisation’s overall control 
framework. 

Overall, there is a poor 

system of internal control in 
place.  

Due to the absence of 

effective controls and 
procedures, no reliance can 

be placed on their 

effectiveness. 

There is a substantial non-

compliance with controls and 
procedures or compliance 

with inadequate controls and 

procedures, which will likely 
put the council’s objectives at 

significant risk of not being 
achieved. 

P
age 61



Internal Audit Progress Report  
March 2022 

Page 11 

 

Table 4: Priority of Actions 
 

Priority Rational 

Critical Critical issue that could have a significant impact on a key system, function, or process objectives, and also the council's 
objectives. 

High  Control weakness that could have a serious impact on a key system, function, or process objectives. 

Medium Control weakness that could have an impact on the achievement of a key system, function or process objectives or an 
issue, which, if addressed, would contribute towards raising the standard of internal control. 

Low Minor control weakness that does not have an impact upon the achievement of a key system, function or process 

objectives. Implementation of the recommendation would strengthen the control framework and/or improve compliance 
with existing controls. 

 

  

P
age 62



 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 

 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER  

AND 

THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT  

 

TO THE AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 23rd MARCH 2022 

 

TITLE: Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Plan 2022/23 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Members are requested to review and comment on the 

Internal Audit Strategy and Plan for 2022/23 attached at Appendix 1. 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: This report advises Members of the internal audit strategy 

and work plan, developed for the financial year 2022/23.  

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards note that the internal audit plan should 
incorporate or be linked to a strategic or high-level statement of how the internal audit 

service will be delivered and developed in accordance with the Internal Audit Charter. 

This internal audit strategy sets out how internal audit produces the plan of work and 
resources that work. It links with the Internal Audit Charter and Quality Assurance 

and Improvement Programme. 

The internal audit plan is risk-based, and takes into account information from various 

sources such as Strategic Risk Register; Service Group risks; discussions with 
Strategic Directors; previous years’ work; and those pieces of work expected of 
Internal Audit by the council’s External Auditors. 

At an aggregate level, the strategy and plan are designed to provide a degree of 
assurance to the Audit & Accounts Committee that the council’s key risks are being 

managed appropriately. 

Ongoing Impact of the Covic-19 Pandemic and Resources 

The detailed plan attached at Appendix A to the strategy document includes 12 
months audit work. Much of this work has been brought forward from the 2021/22 
audit plan as a consequence of the pandemic and its impact on the work of internal 

audit since March 2020. The audits brought forward have been considered by 

Page 63

Agenda Item 11



 2 

internal audit and the respective council leadership teams, and deemed to remain 
relevant and a priority. 

It is currently unclear what, if any, impact the ongoing pandemic will have on delivery 

of the 2022/23 audit plan. The Government continues to introduce new schemes in 
response to the Pandemic, requiring internal audit support and assurance, In addition 

the impact of the pandemic on services across the council continues to affect their 
responsiveness and capacity to be audited. 

Due to changes in staffing within the internal audit team and our partner internal audit 

team at Warrington Borough Council, there is a shortfall in resource of around 1.3 
FTE, reducing temporarily the days available to undertake audit work in 2022/23 by a 

fifth. Action is being taken to address this, but the timescales are uncertain. 

Internal Audit will update Members on an on-going basis throughout the year by 
means of regular Progress Reports and Audit Committee Summaries. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards - Applying the IIA International Standards 

to the UK Public Sector. 

 Internal Audit Charter 

 Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme 

 Audit Management Information System  

 Risk Registers 

 

KEY DECISION: No 

 

DETAILS: See Appendix 1 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: None noted 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: None noted 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: The Internal Audit Plan is primarily determined from 

Strategic Risk Register and Service Group risks, key concerns raised by Service 

Groups, and requirements placed on Internal Audit by regulation. This approach is 
aimed at giving assurance regarding the management of the City Council’s key 

business risks.   

 

 

 

Page 64



 3 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Nicky Smith, Senior Solicitor  

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires every local authority to make 
arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs and to secure that 
one of their officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs.  

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 also require authorities to undertake an 

effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of their risk management, control 
and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing 

standards or guidance.    

In that regard, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards are mandatory for all 
internal auditors working in the UK public sector and require a Council’s chief audit 

executive to establish risk-based plans to determine the priorities of the internal audit 
activity, consistent with the organisation’s goals.  

The risk-based plan must take into account the requirement to produce an annual 
internal audit opinion and the assurance framework. It must incorporate or be linked 
to a strategic or high-level statement of how the internal audit service will be 

delivered and developed in accordance with the internal audit charter and how it links 
to the organisational objectives and priorities. The Chief Audit Executive must review 

and adjust the plan, as necessary, in response to changes in the organisation’s 
business risks, operations, programmes, systems and controls.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Simon Bleckly (Head of Internal Audit) 

The Internal Audit work detailed within this report is funded from within the existing 
budget allocation in the revenue budget. 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Christine Flisk (Procurement 

Manager) 

There are no known procurement implications with this report. 

 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Catherine Sharples (HR Manager) 

There are no known HR implications with this report. 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: All Service Group Strategic Directors and 

Corporate Management Team. 
 

Page 65



 4 

CONTACT OFFICER: Simon Bleckly, Head of Audit TEL NO: 01925 442217 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: N/A 
 

Page 66



Appendix 1 

 

                                                                                                           

 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES 

 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT  

ANNUAL  

STRATEGY AND PLAN 

 

FOR 

 

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL  

 

2022/23 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 67



 

 

 DRAFT Internal Audit Annual Strategy and 
Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 1 

 

  

 

SALFORD INTERNAL AUDIT  

DRAFT ANNUAL STRATEGY AND PLAN 2022/23  

 

Table of Contents 

1. Introduction and Background .........................................................................................2 

2. Basis and Context ............................................................................................................2 

3. Delivering the Plan ...........................................................................................................3 

4. Flexibility in the Plan ........................................................................................................5 

5. Assurance Framework.....................................................................................................6 

6. Liaison with External Audit and Other Providers of Assurance  ................................6 

7. Compliance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards...........................................7 

8. Planned Work 2022/23 ....................................................................................................7 

9. Resources, Skills, and Continued Professional Development ..................................8 

10. Conclusion .........................................................................................................................9 

Appendix A – Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 ....................................................................... 10 

corporate governance...................................................................................................... 10 

service reform ................................................................................................................... 11 

service reform (grants & verification) ............................................................................ 12 

service reform (core financial systems) ........................................................................ 13 

service reform (information technology) ....................................................................... 14 

place ................................................................................................................................... 15 

people (children & families) ............................................................................................ 17 

people (adults and public health) ................................................................................... 19 

people (establishments) .................................................................................................. 20 

other commitments........................................................................................................... 21 

 

  

Page 68



 

 

 DRAFT Internal Audit Annual Strategy and 
Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 2 

 

  

 

 

1. Introduction and Background 

1.1. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the Head of Internal 

Audit to “establish risk-based plans to determine the priorities of the internal 
audit activity, consistent with the organisation’s goals.”  

1.2. The PSIAS note that the internal audit plan should incorporate or be linked to a 

strategic or high-level statement of how the internal audit service will be 
delivered and developed in accordance with the internal audit charter.  

1.3. The internal audit strategy aims to add value to the council and stakeholders by 

providing objective and relevant assurance, and contributing to the 

effectiveness and efficiency of governance, risk management and control 
processes. Audit reports will provide audit analyses, findings and 
recommendations.  

1.4. The audit plan of work provides the council with objective opinions on the 

effectiveness of the organisation’s risk management, control and governance 

arrangements. These opinions are a key element of the evidence to inform: 

 The Annual Report and Head of Audit Opinion; and 

 The Annual Governance Statement. 

1.5. The internal audit plan of work for 2022/23 aims to support the council in 
making best use of resources and the assets available and takes into account 

strategic risks and the corporate objectives, the Great Eight: 

 

 

 

Page 69



 

 

 DRAFT Internal Audit Annual Strategy and 
Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 2 

 
  

1.6. The achievement of the council’s corporate objectives requires all areas of the 

council to work effectively and efficiently in its use of resources whilst 
demonstrating transparent governance arrangements and effective 
arrangements for risk management.  

1.7. The purpose of this document is to put forward a strategy and plan that provide 

a robust basis for internal audit work whilst acknowledging that we must retain 

sufficient flexibility to allow us to react to changes in the risk environment. The 
plan sets out a series of risk based reviews that will support the council to 
achieve its objectives. 

1.8. In producing this strategy and plan we have taken due recognition of the 

continued economic and financial pressures on the council and have noted joint 

working arrangements with partner organisations, including the CCG.  

1.9. We are committed to reviewing our own costs and service delivery to provide 
an efficient and effective service and are working with partner internal audit 

teams, including health teams, to deliver the plan and make best use of 
resources.   

2. Basis and Context  

2.1. In accordance with the Internal Audit Charter the audit plan for 2022/23 takes 
into account the council’s Strategic risk register and the views of senior 

management on the risks they manage within their services. The plan reflects: 

 corporate assurance requirements, including the Annual Governance 

Statement; 

 the outcome of previous audits and those of other assurance providers; 

and 

 discussions with service group leadership / management teams.  

2.2. Several continuing influences on the council have also influenced our plan, 

including:  

 the requirement for the highest levels of corporate governance;  

 the continued impact of Covid-19; 

 changes in the operating environment of the council; in particular:  

- the council’s continued transformation of services through squads 

and re/co-design processes 

- the continued changes arising from the funding constraints the  

council faces 

- developments in relation to the Greater Manchester Combined 

Authority and devolution 

- partnership working, including the CCG and Salford Care 
Organisation 

 internal audit’s cumulative knowledge of the council and national 
developments; and   

Page 70



 

 

 DRAFT Internal Audit Annual Strategy and 
Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 3 

 
  

 the results of investigations and counter fraud initiatives. 

2.3. Transformation of services throughout the council continues to result in 

significant changes to the control framework, and risks can increase as 
experienced employees leave the organisation and new and innovative ways of 

working are developed. We need to be aware of the challenges that face the 
council and maintain awareness of these risks. The audit plan has been 
developed to provide assurance that basic governance and control 

arrangements continue to operate effectively, minimising the risks of 
misappropriation, loss and error.  

2.4. We also recognise that in the production and implementation of our plan we 

need to recognise other sources of assurance that the council receives and co-
ordinate our work accordingly: 

 dovetail our work with that of other independent assurers, especially the 

external auditor; 

 ensure that we optimise value to the council by working closely with other 

providers of assurance, e.g. Governance Group, Performance team, and 
IT team; 

 ensure that we continue to provide assurance on the core financial 
systems that key systems and processes are operating as intended; and 

 provide support to the council in producing its Annual Governance 

Statement (AGS). 

3. Delivering the Plan 

3.1. The outputs from our plan fall into two main areas: 

Assurance: Audits providing an ‘assurance opinion’ on the design and 

effectiveness of the internal control framework over a stated period.  

Advice/Consultancy: Audits in respect of specific requests from the council 

that aim to improve governance, risk management and control. 

3.2. The main areas of outputs requiring assurance are summarised below under       
the broad headings of Corporate Governance and Key Business systems: 

Corporate Governance: 

 Governance Arrangements; 

 Framework of Assurance and AGS;  

 Information Governance including GDPR;  

 Risk Management; and  

 Business Continuity. 

 

 

 

Page 71



 

 

 DRAFT Internal Audit Annual Strategy and 
Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 4 

 
  

Key Business Systems 

 Operational systems and services; 

 Fundamental Financial Systems; 

 Information Management and Technology;  

 Procurement, Capital Schemes and Contracts; and  

 Projects, Squads and Transformation. 

 

Other Risk Areas:  

The council may request our input into specific areas of risk where our 
assurance or assistance has been deemed necessary. The outcomes from 

such work will not normally be used to inform the Head of Internal Audit 
Opinion, but will be brought to the council’s attention as requiring disclosure in 
the Annual Governance Statement, if the outcome is sufficiently material. 

3.3. The following areas are also included in our plan: 

Other Outputs: 

 Grant Audits: Providing assurance as required supporting grant claims or 
substantiating the use of funding. 

 Follow-up: Resources to ensure that previously agreed recommendations 

have been implemented as planned. 

 Contingency for reactive work: This allows us to accommodate audit 

assignments which could not have been reasonably foreseen and to react 

to the transformation of services. 

 Advice and Guidance: Provided by attendance at working groups; 
transformation meetings; or by working with managers and staff to 

develop the control environment. 

 Audit Planning and Support: This includes support to the Audit and 

Accounts Committee; meetings with the Chief Finance Officer and other 
senior managers; audit planning; collaboration with other councils, general 
advice; and the Head of Internal Audit Opinion. 

Review of Information & Communication Technology (ICT): 

 Specialist ICT Auditors will undertake reviews of ICT systems and ICT 

projects. This element of the plan will be informed by the ICT Strategy, the 
work required for Information Governance and any changes arising from 

national ICT developments. 

 

 

 

 

Page 72



 

 

 DRAFT Internal Audit Annual Strategy and 
Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 5 

 
  

Establishments, including Schools: 

 The Plan for 2022/23 includes reviews of individual establishments 

selected from Salford’s: 

- schools 

- pupil referral units  

- children’s homes 

- nurseries 

 We have set aside some time to undertake Post Implementation Reviews 
of previous reviews of establishments.   

 The Schools Financial Value Standard (SFVS)  

- We will continue to support schools in achieving and maintaining the 

SFVS. 

- The SFVS requires all the council’s schools to compile a return at 
the end of financial year commenting on their attainment of this 

Standard.  

- This requirement and the success or otherwise of schools in this 

regard, is taken into account when selecting which schools to visit.  

Fraud, Bribery and Corruption: 

 Internal auditors are alert to potential indicators of fraud and corruption 

when evaluating controls and the management of risk, and will report on 

any concerns that need addressing.  

 The Internal Audit team can undertake fact-finding investigations and 

provide speciality support to Investigating Officers in potential cases of 
fraud, bribery and corruption or where they audit skills are required. The 
service also monitors the whistle blowing referral line. 

 The work of Internal Audit is supported by the joint Corporate Counter 

Fraud Team, which has been set up with Warrington council in response 

to the transfer of responsibility for the investigation of Housing Benefit and 
Council Tax Benefit to the DWP’s Single Fraud Investigation Service 
(SFIS). Their role is to investigate potential frauds in council tax support, 

council tax discount and business rates systems, which remain the 
responsibility of the council. The team has also extended investigative 

work into other areas such as direct payments and tenancy fraud. A 
separate counter fraud plan of work has been developed for 2022/23.   

3.4. After the potential areas have been prioritised, the available days are matched 

against these risk areas. There will always be some lower priority risks that fall 
outside of the Audit Plan due to a lack of available days. 

4. Flexibility in the Plan 

4.1. The plan reflects the assurance need, however it is recognised that priorities 
are subject to change.  

4.2. Major changes that affect the council need to be introduced into the planning 
process as and when they occur. It is therefore crucial to have a flexible plan 

capable of allowing auditable areas to be re-prioritised as circumstances and 

Page 73



 

 

 DRAFT Internal Audit Annual Strategy and 
Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 6 

 
  

relative risks change to ensure that internal audit respond appropriately to 
emerging issues and risks.  

4.3. The plan includes an element of contingency to enable us to respond by 

undertaking reactive audit work when called upon.  

4.4. We accept that there may be a need to amend our planned audits so that we 

continue to reflect the needs of the council. We will discuss changes with the 
Chief Finance Officer; any significant matters that impact upon completion of 

the plan or require substantial changes will be reported to Senior Leadership 
Team and to the Audit and Accounts Committee.   

5. Assurance Framework 

5.1. Internal controls exist to mitigate the risks that threaten the achievement of the 
council’s objectives. In order to have effective internal control, once the 

objectives have been established, there is a need to ensure that management: 

 Has identified and assessed the risks that threaten the achievement of 

those objectives; 

 Has designed internal controls to manage those risks where the 
assessment identifies that they cannot be accepted; and 

 Ensure that employees operate the designed controls effectively. 

5.2. The framework of assurance is used by the council to ensure that it is properly 

informed on the risks of not meeting its objectives or delivering appropriate 
outcomes and that it has adequate assurances on the design and operation of 

the systems in place to mitigate those risks. 

5.3. The council has established a Governance Group that oversees the framework 
of assurance. On a cyclical basis the Group will oversee the progress of other 

groups and key partners that provide key assurances.   

5.4. Internal audit’s role in the framework of assurance is to provide assurance in 

accordance with the planned work and assess the assurances from other 
providers in order to formulate and co-ordinate assurance needs.     

5.5. During 2022/23, the Officer Governance Group will be working on developing a 

more structured assurance mapping process for the council.  This will provide a 
clearer view of the assurances provided across the council’s systems of 
governance, risk and control and will inform the production of the Annual 

Governance Statement and the Internal Audit workplan in future years. 

6. Liaison with External Audit and Other Providers of Assurance 

6.1. We have a continued working relationship with External Audit that 
encompasses regular meetings and sharing of information so that we avoid 

unnecessary overlap.  

6.2. Where our work does overlap then we will ensure that our resources are used 
in a complementary manner so that the council receives the optimum benefit 

from our two plans. 

Page 74



 

 

 DRAFT Internal Audit Annual Strategy and 
Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 7 

 
  

6.3. We are continuing to map assurances received by the council to ensure that 
our work does not duplicate that of other assurers.  

7. Compliance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards  

7.1. Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the formal documenting 

of a Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP). The QAIP covers 
all aspects of the internal audit activity and enables compliance with all aspects 
of the PSIAS to be evaluated.  

7.2. As part of the QAIP, compliance with the Standards is subject to assessment. 

This includes:  

 a self-assessment on a regular basis; and  

 an external assessment which must be conducted at least once every five 
years by a qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from 

outside the organisation.  

7.3. An external assessment was undertaken during November 2017/18 which 

confirmed that the Internal Audit Service conforms to the Standards. The next 
external assessment is scheduled for autumn 2022.  

7.4. External audit also assess the adequacy of internal audit’s work for their annual 

review. 

8. Planned Work 2022/23 

8.1. The Audit Plan is stated in terms of the number of days input which is estimated 
as accurately as possible based on available staff resources (See 8.2 below) 

and an initial estimate for of the time (indicative days) it is likely to take to 
complete the individual audit engagements. The plan, therefore, is ambitious 
and represents the best estimate of the audit resources available and the ways 

in which they will be deployed, but may change as circumstances dictate.   

8.2. The plan is based upon a full complement of staff and the total number of 
available audit days in the year after deductions for holidays; an estimate of 

days for sickness absence; training / apprenticeships; and a minimal number of 
administration or other time not spent on audit work. 

8.3. The internal audit team continue the collaborative agreement with Warrington 

Borough Council for internal audit work. The collaboration aims to ensure the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the council’s internal audit service so that 

resources can be maintained and the Committee can continue to place reliance 
upon the service.  

8.4. Work will continue to build upon the collaborative working arrangements with 

internal audit teams in other neighbouring Authorities and partner organisations 
including the CCG and SRFT internal audit teams. 

8.5. The plan includes resource allocated to cater for collaborating with GMCA and 
providing assurance in relation to initiatives and schemes funded via GMCA. 

 

 

Page 75



 

 

 DRAFT Internal Audit Annual Strategy and 
Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 8 

 
  

9. Resources, Skills, and Continued Professional Development 

9.1. Internal Audit has been resourced in order to meet its objectives and provide 

sufficient assurance to meet the needs of the Audit and Accounts Committee in 
fulfilling its duties.   

9.2. The Internal Audit team has staff with appropriate qualifications, skills and 

experience, supported by the necessary equipment and software to enable the 
team to function efficiently and effectively. 

9.3. Internal Audit is managed by the Head of Internal Audit (a shared post with 

Warrington Borough Council) who is a member of the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy (CPFA), thereby meeting the PSIAS 

requirement that the Head of Internal Audit be professionally qualified.  

9.4. The audit team consists of an audit manager and five auditors: 

Audit Manager Experience: 18 years  

Qualifications: Chartered Internal Auditor (CMIIA) 

Chartered Public Finance Accountant (CPFA) 

Certified Internal Auditor (CIA) 

Accredited Counter Fraud Specialist (ACFS) 

Hours: Full time (36 hours)  

Principal Auditor Experience: 19 years 

Qualifications: Chartered Internal Auditor (CMIIA) 

Certified Internal Auditor (CIA) 

Certified Information Systems Auditor (CISA) 

PRINCE2 & MSP Foundation 

Hours: Full time (36 hours) 

Principal Auditor Experience: 22 years 

Qualifications: Chartered Internal Auditor (CMIIA) 

Certified Internal Auditor (CIA) 

Hours: Full time (36 hours) 

Senior Auditor Experience: 8 years 

Qualifications: Association of Accounting Technicians (AAT) 

Current CIA Apprentice 

Hours: Full time (21 hours)  

Senior Auditor Experience: 7 ½ years 

Qualifications: Association of Accounting Technicians (AAT) 

Current CIPFA Apprentice 

Hours: Full time (21 hours) 

Senior Auditor Experience: 6 ½ years 

Qualifications: Honours degree in Law 

 Hours: Full time (36 hours) 

9.5. We will start 2022/23 with a temporary shortfall in resource of approximately 1.5 
FTE. We are taking steps to address this however the timescales are uncertain. 

Page 76



 

 

 DRAFT Internal Audit Annual Strategy and 
Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 9 

 
  

For planning purposes, we have made an assumption we will have new 
auditors in post for half the year.    

9.6. Where similar work is taking place in Salford and Warrington councils, the 

same auditor will be used where possible to aid efficiency and share learning 
and good practice. 

9.7. Internal Auditors are required to undergo continued professional development 
(CPD) in order to ensure that they maintain up-to-date knowledge and skills 
and can respond to the needs of the internal audit function and changes in the 

professional practice of internal audit. Where relevant, this is achieved through 
the CPD schemes forming part of their membership of their respective 
professional bodies. 

9.8. The internal auditors are ‘agile workers’, enabled to work within the main office, 
home, or any location with SCC network access or broadband connection. 

Each auditor has an encrypted laptop and access to software such as Microsoft 
Teams to support their ability to work from the most appropriate location. 

9.9. The auditors are subject to a regular staff appraisal where their skills and 

experience are evaluated against predefined competencies for internal auditors 
alongside the council’s annual ‘personal development reviews’. Any specific 

training needs are highlighted and documented through this process and those 
needs addressed when funding is available. 

Information Technology Audit 

9.10. It has been recognised that the audit of Information Communication Technology 

(ICT) presents specific challenges and many aspects require specialist 
knowledge of ICT to enable its effective audit and the development of actions to 
address areas of weakness.  

9.11. To meet this need the council’s IT Audit team will provide 120 ‘audit days’ work 

on ICT engagements. The IT Audit team has five ICT audit specialists, 

providing services to Greater Manchester’s local authorities and other public 
sector organisations across the wider northern region. 

 

10. Conclusion 

10.1. The Internal Audit Plan has been compiled in accordance with the PSIAS and 
is linked to the council’s objectives and risks.   

10.2. The plan has taken into account all the activities of the council and 

discussions have been held on the continuing impact of Covid-19 on available 

service and internal audit resources. 

10.3. Completion of the Audit Plan will enable the Head of Internal Audit to form an 
opinion on the council’s system of internal control, risk management and 

governance along with assisting the council to achieve its stated objectives 
and informing the Annual Governance Statement. 

10.4. The audits outstanding at the end of each year will transfer into the following 

year’s audit plan, subject to regular consultation with the leadership teams.

Page 77



 

 

 
Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 10 

 
  

Appendix A – Internal Audit Plan 2022/23  

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Audit Activity 
Links to Link to the Council’s Objectives and Key 

Risks 
Initial Brief 

Indicative 

Days 

Governance 

Arrangements / AGS 

Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Loss of accountability; lack of corporate 
ownership of decision-making; and possible failure to 

deliver the expected level of services to residents. 

(Linked strategic risk SCCSRR.007) 

Code of Corporate Governance; Relations with 

stakeholders and partners; Annual Governance Statement; 
and attendance at Officer Governance Group. 

10 

Risk Management and 
Assurance Framework 

Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Failure to identify major risks that may prevent 
the Council from achieving one or more of its 
objectives.  

Failure to ensure that the major risks are being 
managed. 

Review of the council’s risk management strategy and 
arrangements for the maintenance of risk registers. Review 

the associated information management system and 
reporting arrangements. 

10 

Information 
Governance 

Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Non-compliance with statutory Information 
Governance requirements and potential data breach. 

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.004) 

Supporting Information Governance team’s response to the 
Information Commissioner’s inspection and the council’s 

embedding of the General Data Protection Regulations. 

10 

Innovate, 

Transformation, 
Change & Squads 
Support   

Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Failure to realise the projected benefits and 
savings. Poor/ weak controls implemented in new 
systems. 

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.001; SCCSRR.002) 

Ad hoc advice, assurance and consultative support on a 

case-by-case basis to innovation/transformation work 
strands and similar initiatives, including ‘squads’.  

Focus placed on reviewing proposed changes to processes 

and the impact on the control environment and risk 
mitigation. 

20 

Total:  50 

 

P
age 78



 

 

 
Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 11 

 
  

SERVICE REFORM 

Audit Activity Link to the Council’s Objectives and Key Risks Initial Brief 
Indicative 

Days 

Benefits Service 

(Compliance with 

Baseline Personnel 

Security Standard) 

Great Eight: Transport and digital connectivity 

Great Eight: Tackling poverty and inequality 

Risk: Failure to comply with Government / DWP / 

HMRC access requirements 

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.004).   

BPSS is the recognised standard for the pre-employment 

screening of individuals with access to government assets. 

A recent Employee Authentication Service (EAS-R) audit 

uncovered widespread non-compliance of LA’s undertaking 

the necessary Baseline Personnel Security Standard 

(BPSS) checks. This audit will establish SCC’s position. 

15 

Contract Management Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Failure to get the best value for money and 

outcomes achievable from contractual arrangements. 

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.001, SCCSRR.007) 

Ad hoc reviews of significant contracts and the 

arrangements in place for their economical / effective use 

and arrangements in place to monitor the quality of 

provision. 

15 

Council Constitution Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: If the constitution does not keep pace with the 
council’s transformation and new ways of working, its 
usefulness is undermined. 

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.007) 

Ad hoc consultancy support to the review and refresh of the 

council’s constitution. 

15 

Modern Slavery (b/f) Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Great Eight: Tackling poverty and inequality 

Risk: Failure to comply with law / regulations and 
reputational damage to the council reputation 

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.007) 

Issues around modern slavery are prominent nationally.  

Review to focus on the council’s response to meeting its 

regulatory and ethical responsibilities, internally and our 

communities.  

15 

Statutory Returns - 

Data Integrity & 

Resources (bf) 

Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Non-compliance with national requirements. Poor 

quality data to support decision making.  

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.007) 

Review of the arrangements in place to ensure high quality 

data is provided timely to Government Departments.  

The review is also intended to consider the resourcing / 
capacity of the organisation to meet its obligations in this 

respect. 

15 

P
age 79



 

 

 
Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 12 

 
  

Peer Review – SCC 
Response 

Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Failure to learn from the peer review experience 
and seize opportunities for improvement.  

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.007)  

A review of the action being taken to address matters 
raised during the 2021/22 peer review. 

10 

PIR Corporate 
Complaints 

Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Missed opportunities to respond positively to 

mistakes and improve services. Failure to address 
customers concerns appropriately.  

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.007) 

Post implementation review of the previous audit of the 
corporate complains system and implementation of the 
agreed actions. 

5 

CCG Replacement - 
Joint Business 
Planning Processes 

Great Eight: Tackling health inequalities and providing 

the best possible care 

Risk: Insufficient influence or voice within the planning 

process may lead to reduced funding or suitability of 

services to Salford residents’ needs and priorities. 

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.007) 

Critical review of the joint business planning processes 
between SCC and the CCG replacement, ensuring local 
priorities are appropriately recognised.  

15 

Service Reform Forward Plan:  Agency workers  

Total:  105 

 

SERVICE REFORM (Grants & Verification) 

Audit Activity Link to the Council’s Objectives and Key Risks Initial Brief 
Indicative 

Days 

Greaves Trust Great Eight: Tackling poverty and inequality 

Risk: Failure to comply with regulations. 

Independent review of Greaves Trust’s annual accounts. 3 

Energy Rebate Great Eight: Tackling poverty and inequality 

Risk: Failure to comply with grant requirements.  

Ad hoc advice and assurance work supporting the council’s 
approach to distributing the Government’s £150 energy 
rebate to council tax payers. 

     

30 

P
age 80



 

 

 
Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 13 

 
  

Grant Reviews / Audit 
Certification 

Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Failure to comply with grant requirements.  

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.007) 

Grant reviews anticipated during 2020/21  

     

15 

Total:  48 

 

SERVICE REFORM (Core Financial Systems)  

Audit Activity Link to the Council’s Objectives and Key Risks Initial Brief 
Indicative 

Days 

Budgetary Control (bf)  Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Failure to identify budget variances promptly and 

take corrective action taken.  

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.001) 

Routine review of the council’s approach to budget 

development, monitoring/forecasting and taking action to 

address significant variances. Scope to include revenue 

and capital budgets. Audit postponed from 21/22 due to 

procedural changes.  

15 

 

Main Accounting 

System (bf) 
Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Errors and omissions resulting in weaknesses in 

the integrity of financial data and statements. 

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.001) 

Routine review of the council’s main accounting processes. 

The work will be discussed with the external auditor to 

avoid duplication. 

20 

Fixed Assets Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Errors and omissions resulting in weaknesses in 

the integrity of financial data and statements. 

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.001) 

A review of the processes and controls in place regarding 

fixed assets. A fresh risk based approach is to be adopted.  

15 

Financial Systems Forward Plan * Regular/cyclical reviews including; Accounts Receivable (Debtors); Cash & Bank; Accounts Payable; Payroll; Treasury 

Management  

Total:  50 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 81



 

 

 
Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 14 

 
  

 

SERVICE REFORM (Information Technology) 

Audit Activity Link to the Council’s Objectives and Key Risks Initial Brief 
Indicative 

Days 

Data Centre (Physical 

and Environmental 

Security)  

Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Failure to adequately physically secure and 

environmentally protect systems could result in a data 

breach, loss of service / downtime and loss of data. 

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.004) 

Review assessing how the ICT service is equipped to 

mitigate physical and environmental risks to the data 

centre. 

5 

PCI Compliance Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: The council could be fined in the event of non-

compliance to the PCI DSS standard or potentially the 

ability for the council to take card payments could be 

revoked by the banks. 

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.004) 

Annual internal and external quarterly vulnerability scans to 

monitor and maintain PCI compliance. 

10 

ISO 27001 Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Weaknesses in the expected control framework 

may expose the council to information security risks, 

including information security breaches or data loss.   

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.004) 

ISO/IEC 27001 is an information security standard. 

Continued audit support for compliance with ISO 27001 

Certification. 

20 

SAP Access Control Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Weak access controls can result in unauthorised 

and inappropriate access to key financial systems. 

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.004) 

 

 

Assessing role based access management.  20 

P
age 82



 

 

 
Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 15 

 
  

Data Analytics  Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Errors in data quality can result in duplicate 

payments and potential fraud within key financial 

systems. 

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.004) 

Ad hoc assurance exercises in corporate data analysis 

using IDEA to interrogate council datasets. 

20 

Disaster Recovery Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: If effective arrangements are not in place to 

restore systems, software and data, then there could 

be significant and/or prolonged disruption to the 

provision of services.   

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.004) 

A risk based review of the council’s arrangements for 

disaster recovery (the method of regaining access and 

functionality to IT infrastructure after an event/incident). 

15 

Consultancy Support  

 

Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Poorly configured system could result in non-
compliance with PCI standards and data quality issues 
within information transferred in to SAP.    

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.004) 

Ad hoc consultative or assurance support, including on:  

 Information Strategy 

 SOC Support 

 Civica Pay 

 JCAD 

 SOC 

30 

Total:  120 

 

PLACE 

Audit Activity 
Links to Link to the Council’s Objectives and Key 

Risks 
Initial Brief 

Indicative 

Days 

CCTV Control Room 

(ISO Compliance) 

Great Eight: Creating vibrant places and spaces 

Risk: Failure to maintain ISO accreditation could 

impact the council’s reputation and the reliance placed 
on the CCTV function in supporting other agencies and 
community safety. 

Routine annual review. As part of maintaining the CCTV 

control room's ISO accreditation, the service must produce 
an annual report. This report needs to be independently 
validated.  

3 

P
age 83



 

 

 
Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 16 

 
  

Major Projects – 
University & Crescent 

Programme 
Governance 

Great Eight: Creating vibrant places and spaces 

Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Ineffective or weak governance arrangements 
may undermine the outcomes of the programme and 
the management of associated risks. 

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.001; SCCSRR.007) 

Standard governance review but extend scope to include 
partnership working and applying any lessons learnt and 
good practice from RHS Bridgewater Programme. 

17 

Health & Safety  Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Potential damage to health/wellbeing or loss of 
life which may result in claims, reputational dame, 
litigation or corporate manslaughter. 

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.002; SCCSRR.007) 

Review of health and safety related activities within the 

council. Scoping / planning will take into consideration the 
new legal responsibilities placed on SCC (from functions 

formerly the responsibility of UV) in respect of Construction 
Design and Management Regulations (CDM), effectiveness 
of analysis of recorded incidents to address root causes, 
and building/fire safety checks. (Q2/Q3)  

25 

Derive Great Eight: Creating vibrant places and spaces 

Great Eight: Affordable Housing and reducing 

homelessness 

Risk: Failure to maintain appropriate and adequate 
governance could result in poor decision making, 
financial problems and delays to the Housing delivery 
ambitions and sustainability. 

To review the current and planned Derive governance, 
decision making and financial management arrangements. 

To review the Derive /SCC relationship arrangements to 
ensure they are fit for purpose and that the respective roles 

are understood and reflected in the practical arrangements 
in place  

15 

Section 106 
Agreements 

Great Eight: Creating vibrant places and spaces 

Risk: Failure to maximise the benefits of Section 106 
agreements for Salford’s communities.  

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.007) 

Risk based review of the council’s management of Section 
106 Agreements. 

15 

Climate Emergency 
(SCC Response) 

Great Eight: Tackling the climate emergency 

Risk: Failure to reduce the impact of the council’s 
operations on the climate and environment.   

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.007) 

In July 2019 the council declared a climate emergency. This 
risk based review is intended to provide assurance on the 

governance structures wrapped around delivery of the 
council’s response. This will be a cross-cutting piece across 
the organisation/directorates. 

15 

P
age 84

https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/climate-change/salford-s-climate-emergency-declaration/


 

 

 
Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 17 

 
  

Catering (Cash 
Handling) 

Great Eight: Creating an economy for all 

Risk: Weaknesses within the control environment 
increase the risk of fraud, error and loss.   

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.001) 

To review the existing arrangements in place for cash 
handling within Citywide Catering.   

15 

Place Service Group Forward Plan * CAMS Rollout; Capital Programmes (Pipeline and Funding Bids); Highways Maintenance (Productivity); Major 

Projects (Swinton Transformation Programme Governance); Corporate Facilities Management; Houses in Multiple Occupation - Private Renting 

Total:  90 

 

PEOPLE (Children & Families) 

Audit Activity Link to the Council’s Objectives and Key Risks Initial Brief 
Indicative 

Days 

Helping Families 

(GMCA Troubled 

Families) inc. Early 

Help  

Great Eight: Tackling health inequalities and providing 

the best possible care 

Great Eight: Tackling poverty and inequality 

Great Eight: Skills and education 

Risk: Missed opportunities to help enable better long 

term outcomes for children and families, and reduce 

future demand on services.  

Review the new systems and process in place that support 
identification of need and the course of action taken, 
combined with Helping Families routine annual review as 

part of GMCA’s Troubled Families programme.   

The review will also examine the interface between Early 
Help and partners. 

17 

Children with 

Disabilities Team 

(workflow) 

Great Eight: Tackling health inequalities and providing 

the best possible care 

Risk: Workflow processes are inefficient or do not 

effectively support achievement of objectives. 

Risk based review of the services workflow management 

within the Children with Disabilities Team. 

15  

Special Guardianship 

Orders (SGOs) 

Great Eight: Tackling health inequalities and providing 

the best possible care 

Risk: Failure to maximise, safely, the use of SGOs and 

realise the potential benefits for the child.  

Risk based review of the council’s processes supporting / 

enabling Special Guardianship Orders, where a child is 

placed with a grandparent, close relative or a family friend. 

12 

P
age 85



 

 

 
Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 18 

 
  

Transition  Great Eight: Tackling health inequalities and providing 

the best possible care 

Risk: Failure to effectively enable children in readiness 

for transition to adulthood and where available, adult 

services. 

Risk based review of the effectiveness of arrangements for 

Transition of individuals leaving children’s services (18-25 

funding) with particular focus on mental health services and 

SEND/High need. 

15  

Workforce Retention 

Strategy   

Great Eight: Tackling health inequalities and providing 

the best possible care 

Risk: Failure to achieve a balanced workforce / full 

establishment will undermine service delivery.  

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.002) 

Risk based review of the effectiveness of the service’s new 

Workforce Retention Strategy, including recruitment and 

succession planning. An initial piece to be completed in 

children’s services, with a further piece in adults services to 

follow on.   

15 

Project Imagine Great Eight: Tackling health inequalities and providing 

the best possible care 

Risk: Ineffective or inefficient working practices may 

undermine social care practice and fail to realise the 

benefits of the new system.  

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.004) 

Ad hoc support / assurance work as the new social care 

system is embedded into practice.  

 

 6 

People Service Group Forward Plan: Independent Fostering Agency (IFA); Kinship Care Orders; Carers Assessments;   

Total:  80 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 86



 

 

 
Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 19 

 
  

PEOPLE (Adults and Public Health)  

Audit Activity Link to the Council’s Objectives and Key Risks Initial Brief 
Indicative 

Days 

Personal Budgets & 

Direct Payments 

(Adults) 

Great Eight: Tackling health inequalities and providing 

the best possible care 

Risk: Funds provided to meet individuals’ social care 

and support needs are not being used as agreed and 

fail to deliver anticipated outcomes.  

Complementing the work in Children’s and Families on 

Direct Payments and Personal Budgets, a similar review of 

approach adopted within adult services, delivered by the 

Salford Care Organisation.    

15  

PIR Health Inequalities Great Eight: Tackling health inequalities and providing 

the best possible care 

Great Eight: Tackling poverty and inequality 

Risk: Missed opportunities to help reduce health 

inequalities in Salford’s communities. 

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.003) 

Post implementation review of the 2020/21 audit of Health 

Inequalities and implementation of the agreed actions.  

10 

Home Care 

 

Great Eight: Tackling health inequalities and providing 

the best possible care 

Risk: Recipients of services may not be getting 

sufficient time and quality of care required, leading to 

poorer outcomes / quality of life.  

Risk based review of Home Care provision, visiting 

providers to review the effectiveness of interfaces with the 

SCO/Commissioners and any barriers to improvement.    

15 

Hospital Discharges  Great Eight: Tackling health inequalities and providing 

the best possible care 

Risk: Barriers to discharge may lead to poorer 

outcomes for the individual and bed blocking.  

Risk based review of the arrangements in place for hospital 

discharges, considering the potential barriers to discharge 

and interfaces with partners / community fund support.    

15  

People Service Group Forward Plan: Forensic Social Work , Carers Assessments; Outsourced Services (Benefits Realisation); Hospital Discharges 

Total:  55 

 

P
age 87



 

 

 
Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 20 

 
  

PEOPLE (Establishments) 

Audit Activity Link to the Council’s Objectives and Key Risks Initial Brief 
Indicative 

Days 

Children’s Homes Great Eight: Tackling health inequalities and providing 

the best possible care 

Risk: Poor record keeping and lack of consistent 

procedures/practices resulting in fraud or error.  

Site visits examining the implementation of the updated 

financial and administrative procedures in Salford’s 

Children’s Homes. 

10 

High / Special Schools Great Eight: Skills and education 

Risk: Financial irregularities, deficit budgets, breach of 

the Scheme of Delegation for Schools, and increased 

risk of fraud or loss.   

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.007) 

Undertake a standard review of the governance, financial, 

and administrative arrangements, including service 

provision, security. 

10 

Primary Schools Great Eight: Skills and education 

Risk: Financial irregularities, deficit budgets, breach of 

the Scheme of Delegation for Schools, and increased 

risk of fraud or loss.   

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.007) 

Undertake a standard review of the governance, financial, 

and administrative arrangements. The list of schools is 

based on risk factors including time since last review, 

budgetary position and change of Headteacher or School 

Business Manager.   

45 

Schools Financial 

Value Standard 

Great Eight: Skills and education 

Risk: The reputation of SCC and its schools damaged 

by failure to meet national requirements. 

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.007) 

 

 

Verification work on the Salford schools’ annual returns. 10 

P
age 88



 

 

 
Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Plan 2022/23 

 
  

 
Page 21 

 
  

School governance 

support and test plan 

development 

Great Eight: Skills and education 

Risk: Failure of the audit approach to keep pace with 

changes within schools will reduce the effectiveness of 

the audit approach. 

(Linked strategic risk  SCCSRR.007) 

Consultative support to schools / governor services. 

Maintaining awareness of the schools regulatory 

environment and issues affecting risk and financial 

management and updating the audit test plan. 

5 

Total: 80 

 

OTHER COMMITMENTS 

Activity 
Indicative 

Days 

Contingency and Completion of audits commenced during 2021/22  102 

Post Implementation Reviews and Action Tracking 25 

GMCA Collaboration / reactive GM assurance work 10 

Investigations and supporting the council’s counter fraud strategy (including 2022/23 refresh of policies and procedures) 80 

Audit Management, including planning 120 
 

*_Forward Plans: These reviews were identified through our planning processes and included above but a resource (indicative days) not allocated. It is intended 
that these audits will either be undertaken when a resource becomes available, priorities change or as part of the 2022/23 plan. These audits/priorities will be 

discussed with the respective management team again at that time. 
 

**_ Strategic Risk Register  

 (January 2021/22, summary list) 

- SCCSRR.001 Financial Resilience 

- SCCSRR.002 Stability and capacity of workforce and maintaining a strong organisational culture 

- SCCSRR.003 Infectious disease outbreaks (including Coronavirus) 

- SCCSRR.004 Cyber security 

- SCCSRR.005 Impact of climate change 

- SCCSRR.006 Inability to deliver minimum service levels/statutory service levels as a result of a business interruption/emergency incident 

- SCCSRR.007 Effective governance and decision making 

P
age 89



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Updated 04.02.22 

 
Audit and Accounts Committee  

Work Programme 
2022/23 

 

SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE DATES & AGENDA ITEMS 

Meeting Date 

 

Agenda Items Responsible officer (s) 

22 June 2022 1. Outcome of the Self-Assessment & Training Needs Identification 
2. Annual Report of the Chair 
3. Annual Report of the Head of Internal Audit (to inc Counter Fraud Bribery and 

Corruption Update) 

4. 2020-21 End of Year Strategic Risk Register update (end of year update 
presented in June every year)  

5. Strategic Risk Register 
6. Draft Code of Corporate Governance 
7. Final Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2021/22 
8. Internal Audit Progress Report 

9. Part 2 – current investigations update 
10.  

Chair/Simon Bleckly 

Monitoring Officer/Simon Bleckly 

/Jacquie Russell 

Monitoring Officer/Simon Bleckly 

Simon Bleckly 

Simon Bleckly 

David Smith 

Shoaib Mohammad 

David Smith 

27 July 2022 1. Code of Corporate Governance  
2. Draft Annual Governance Statement  
3. Draft Statement of Accounts  
4.Urban Vision Transition – 12 month review  

5. 2021-22 Strategic Risk Register (following presentation of new Risk  Register, a 

half-year and end of year progress update will be presented in October 2021 and June 
2022. In between these reports ad hoc requests on risks can be presented to the 
Committee if required). 

6. Risk Management Strategy update (following this review of the Strategy, reviews 
will be presented every two years, in March) 

7.. RIPA Annual Report  
8. External Auditors: 

 Audit Committee Update and External Audit Fee Letter 

 Going concern report 
9. Part 2 – current investigations update 

Iolanda Puzio/ Simon Bleckly 

Iolanda Puzio/ Simon Bleckly 

Joanne Hardman 

Shoaib Mohammad 

Emma Reid/Jacquie Russell 

 

 

 

 

Iolanda Puzio 

 

Mazars 

 

David Smith 

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 12



Updated 04.02.22 

28 September 
2022 

1. Annual Governance Statement  
2. Audited Statement of Accounts 
3. Internal Audit Charter 
4. Internal Audit Quality and Improvement Programme 
5. External Auditors Update  
6. Government response to the Redmond Review 
 

Monitoring Officer/Simon Bleckly 

Joanne Hardman 

Monitoring Officer/ Simon Bleckly 

Simon Bleckly 

Simon Bleckly 

Dave Wilcock 

 
26 October 2022 1. Private meeting for committee with External Auditors 

2. Annual Governance Statement (for signing off) 
3. Audited Statement of Accounts 
4. External Auditors - Audit Committee Updates and Annual Audit Letter  
5. Internal Audit Progress Report 
6. Counter Fraud Bribery and Corruption update report 
7. The effectiveness of the distribution of Covid Grants/Loans and impact of Covid 

on the Council Budget  
8. Part 2 – current investigations update 

Mazars 

Joanne Hardman 

Simon Bleckly 

Mazars 

Simon Bleckly 

Simon Bleckly 

 

 

David Smith 
25 January 2023 

 

 

 

1. Training Session: Evaluating the Effectiveness of the Audit Committee  (How the Committee adds value to the Council) 
including briefing on the Self Assessment Exercise (David Smith/Simon Bleckly) 

2. Private meeting for committee with Internal Auditors (Simon Bleckly) 
3. Annual Audit Letter (Mazars) 
4. External Auditors -  Audit Committee Update (Mazars) 
5. External Audit Contract Procurement (Joanne Hardman/Simon Bleckly) 
6. Opting-in to Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) (Joanne Hardman) 
7. Update on the provisional budget settlement (Joanne Hardman) 
8. 2021-22 Strategic Risk Register Update (Jacquie Russell & Debbie McCarron) 
9. Public Interests Report (to be rescheduled) (Iolanda Puzio/Simon Bleckly) 
10. Internal Audit Progress Report  
11. Part 2 – Current investigations update (David Smith)  
 

22 March 2023 1. Self Assessment Exercise (Assessment) (David Smith/Simon Bleckly) 
2. Audit and Accounts Committee Terms of Reference (David Smith) 
3. External Auditors - Audit Committee Update, Grants Certification Letter and Audit Plan (Mazars) 
4. Internal Audit Strategy and Draft Internal Audit Plan (Simon Bleckly) 
5. Internal Audit Progress Report (David Smith) 
6. Report on the Effectiveness of Internal Audit (Simon Bleckly) 

7. Part 2 – current investigations update (David Smith) 
 
 

P
age 92



Updated 04.02.22 

 Abeyance List  
 Introduction to the use of RIPA   
 CIPFA Training -role of the Audit Committee   
 Risk Management and the Assurance Framework – Training Session   
 Apprenticeship Levy Update  
Councillors (8) 

 Robin Garrido (c) 

 Roger Jones 

 Mike Pevitt 

 Gina Reynolds 

 Alexis Shama 

 Phil Tresadern 

 John Walsh 

Roseanna Wain 

 

Co-opted Members (2) 

Edoardo Bucci (21.10.20 – 20.10.23) 

1 x vacancy 

 

Invitee 

 Councillor Bill Hinds - Lead Member for Finance & Support Services  

 

Quorum - 3 (Members)  

 

Officers 

Iolanda Puzio - City Solicitor 

John Searle - Strategic Director for Place 

Simon Bleckly – Head of Internal Audit (from April 2021) 

Joanne Hardman - Chief Finance Officer 

David Smith - Internal Audit Manager 

Chris Hesketh - Head of Financial Management 

Tony Thompstone - Strategic Finance Manager 

 

Cath Andrews – Mazars  

Karen Murray - Mazars 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 93



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC FOR FACE TO FACE MEETINGS
	4 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the previous meeting.
	6 Report on the Effectiveness of the Internal Audit - Simon Bleckly
	Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit - Appendix A - Action Plan - PART 1

	7 Audit and Accounts Terms of Reference - David Smith
	Audit and Accounts Committee Terms of Reference - Mar 2022 - Paper - PART 1

	9 External Auditors Update (Mazars):
	10 Internal Audit Progress Report - David Smith
	11 Internal Audit Strategy and Draft Internal Audit Plan - Simon Bleckly
	Draft - Internal Audit Strategy and Annual Plan 2022-23 - Appendix 1 - PART 1

	12 The Work Programme and Membership

